
 
 

 
Real Estate Commission 

Meeting 
 
 

December 18, 2019 
 

Atwood Building 
550 W 7th Avenue 

Ste 1236 
 

Anchorage 

 
 

 
 
    



Roll Call – December 18, 2019 
 
PeggyAnn McConnochie 
 
Margaret Nelson 
 
Cheryl Markwood 
 
David Pruhs 
 
Jerry Royse 
 
Jaime Matthews 
 
Jesse Sumner 



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

 

Tentative Meeting Agenda 
December 18, 2019 

 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 

Atwood Building  
550 W. 7th Ave. Ste 1236 

Anchorage, AK 
 

ZOOM Info: Join ZOOM meeting: https://zoom.us/j/170842231, 
Meeting ID: 170 842 231, Call-In: +1 669 900 6833 

 
Note: there will be a break for lunch from 12 until 1. 
Director Chambers will give her report at 1:00 pm. 

 
Wednesday, December 18, 2019 

 
9:00 a.m.   1.  Call to Order McConnochie 

a) Roll Call 
b) Approval of Agenda 
c) Statements of Conflicts of Interest 

 
9:15 a.m. 2. Oral Comments (per scoping project) & Public Comments (on all other items) 

 (Consumer Disclosure and Waiver of Right to be Represented --scoping project) 
   *each individual will have a time limit of up to 3 minutes to comment 
 

3. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
a) September 25, 2019 

 
4. Committee Reports 

a) Property Management Committee Nelson 
b) Education Committee Royse 

 
5. Old Business 

a) Potential Changes to Consumer Disclosure & Waiver of Rights 
forms after oral and written comments have been received 

b) Notarized Signature regulations –  
12 AAC 64.059 (b)(1)(E) and 12 AAC 64.059 (d)(1)(E) 

 
6. New Business Harris 

a) Fine Matrix – background and status 
b) PearsonVue contract and overall pass rates 
c) AK Real Estate Commission Property Transfer Form 
d) Consideration of forming a Communications Committee 

 
 
 



     STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

 
Tentative Meeting Agenda 

December 18, 2019 
 

REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 
Atwood Building  

550 W. 7th Ave. Ste 1236 
Anchorage, AK 

 
ZOOM Info: Join ZOOM meeting: https://zoom.us/j/170842231, 

Meeting ID: 170 842 231, Call-In: +1 669 900 6833 
 

 
1:00 pm             7. Division Update                                        Sara Chambers, Director of CBPL   
                                REC Revenues and Expenditures Report 
 

8. Investigative Report 
a. Statistical Report Consalo 
b. Probation Report Medina 

 
9. Executive Administrator’s Report Harris 

a. Licensing and Education Statistics 
b. Recovery Fund Balance Report 

 
10.  2020 Proposed Meeting Dates: 

March 25, 2020 
June 24, 2020 
September 23, 2020 – in person meeting 
December 16, 2020       

 
11. Texas Real Estate Commission (TREC) Regulation Reform 
       
12. Commission member comments and questions 
 

13. Adjournment 
 

 
Please report any Ethics violations to Nancy Harris. 

 
 

Next Meeting: TBD (March 25, 2020) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Statements of Conflict of Interest 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Oral Comments & Public Comments 
 

  
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

 

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND 
PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

Juneau Office 
 

P.O. Box 110806 
Juneau, AK 99811-0806 

Main: 907.465.2550 
Toll free tax: 907.465.2974 

 

 
Alaska Real Estate Commission 

Notice of Public Scoping for Possible Updates and Revisions to 
AREC Regulations Under Administrative Order 266 

 
12 AAC 64.118 and 12 AAC 64.119 

 
 

The Alaska Real Estate Commission (Commission) is reviewing its regulations to determine whether 
to update or revise the current requirements and forms, the Consumer Disclosure and the Waiver of 
Right to be Represented, that the Commission adopts by reference. 
 
The Commission last revised and adopted the Consumer Disclosure and the Waiver of Right to be 
Represented forms in February 2015.  To view the current forms, please go to: 
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/AREC-
ConsumerDisclosure&WaiverOfRightToBeRepresented-02-2015.pdf.  
 
 12 AAC 64.118. CONSUMER DISCLOSURE. Before a real estate licensee provides 
specific assistance to a person, or when entering into a contract with the person to provide specific 
assistance, the real estate licensee shall provide the person with a copy of the commission’s Alaska 
Real Estate Commission Consumer Disclosure, dated February 2015, and adopted by reference. 
 
 12 AAC 64.119. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED. A written consent 
that a neutral licensee obtains under AS 08.88.610 must be provided on the commission’s form 
entitled Alaska Real Estate Commission Waiver of Right to Be Represented, dated February 2015, and 
adopted by reference. 
 
The purpose of this notice is to ask the licensees, public, and other interested parties for ideas and 
suggestions for possible updates or revisions to these regulations and forms before the Commission 
undertakes the task of drafting any specific proposed revisions to these regulations and forms.  
These ideas and suggestions can be as broad or as narrow, or as general or specific as a submitter 
may wish, but they should pertain only to the two sections cited above. 
 
The Commission is not currently proposing any specific changes at this time.  There are no draft 
regulations to review.  If the Commission does draft any new proposed regulations or amendments 
related to these two sections, those proposed revisions will be noticed, and made available for public 
review and comment under the Administrative Procedure Act AS 44.62. 
 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/AREC-ConsumerDisclosure&WaiverOfRightToBeRepresented-02-2015.pdf
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/AREC-ConsumerDisclosure&WaiverOfRightToBeRepresented-02-2015.pdf


 
 
AREC Public Scoping 
Page 2 
 
This notice and the input it solicits is intended to assist the Commission in gathering information 
before it begins the formal process of drafting any proposed changes to its existing regulatory 
framework related to the Consumer Disclosure and the Waiver of Right to be Represented forms. 
 
Written comments, suggestions, and other input must be received no later than 4:30 p.m. on 
December 13, 2019.  Please send all submissions by mail or email to: 
 
Jun Maiquis, Regulations Specialist 
Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
P.O. Box 110806 
Juneau, AK 99811-0801 
RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov 
 
Comments may also be submitted through the Alaska Online Public Notice System by accessing this 
notice on the system at http://notice.alaska.gov/196155, and using the “comment” link. 
 
Oral comments may also be given at a hearing to be held on December 18, 2019, at the Atwood 
Building, 550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1236, Anchorage, AK.  The hearing will begin at 9:15 a.m. and 
will end when those who have called in or signed up before 9:15 a.m. to give oral testimony have 
had the opportunity to comment.  If you wish to give your comments via telephone, please call 1-
800-315-6338 access code 25803.  The chair of the Commission may limit each participant’s length 
of oral testimony, determined by the chair before the hearing begins, to allow enough time for all 
those who have called in or signed up and timely registered to give testimony. 
 
The division reserves the right to waive technical defects in this publication.  The division complies 
with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who may 
need auxiliary aides, services or special modifications to participate in this scoping request may 
contact the above address or email. 
 
Publish date: November 18, 2019 
 

mailto:RegulationsAndPublicComment@alaska.gov
http://notice.alaska.gov/196155








Approval of Meeting Minutes 



 

                                                                                                     1 
STATE OF ALASKA 2 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 4 

 5 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 6 

MEETING MINUTES 7 
 8 

September 25, 2019 9 
 10 

“These draft minutes were prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, 11 
Business and Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved 12 
by the Commission.” By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the 13 
provisions of AS 44.62, Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Real Estate 14 
Commission was held September 25, 2019, at the State of Alaska Atwood Building 15 
ACC 106, 550 W. 7th Avenue, Anchorage, Alaska. 16 
  17 
September 25, 2019 18 
Agenda Item 1 - Call to Order 19 
Chairperson PeggyAnn McConnochie called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. at 20 
which time a quorum was established. 21 
 22 
Roll Call – 1(a) 23 
Members present: 24 
PeggyAnn McConnochie, 1st Judicial District, Chairperson 25 
Margaret Nelson, Broker, Broker at Large, Vice Chairperson 26 
Jamie Matthews, Public Member 27 
Cheryl Markwood, Broker at Large 28 
David Pruhs, Broker, 4th Judicial District 29 
Jerry Royse, Broker, 3rd Judicial District, Education Liaison 30 
Jesse Sumner, Public Member 31 
 32 
Staff Present: 33 
Sharon Walsh, Executive Administrator  34 
Nancy Harris, Project Assistant 35 
Shyla Consalo, Investigator for REC 36 
Greg Francois, Chief Investigator, CBPL 37 
Sara Chambers, Director of CBPL 38 
 39 
Guests Present:  40 
Larry Imm, Salesperson, Jack White Real Estate, Anchorage 41 
Errol Champion, Liaison for AAR, Juneau 42 
Lonnie Logan, Associate Broker, Herrington and Company, Anchorage 43 
Kassandra Taggart, Broker, Real Property Management Last Frontier, Anchorage 44 
Irina V. Sklipilova, Hoffman & Associates 45 
Paddy Coan, Associate Broker, Keller Williams Realty, Anchorage 46 
Jerod McClure, Salesperson, Northern Trust Real Estate, Anchorage  47 
Anita Bates, Associate Broker, Dwell Realty, Anchorage 48 
Marilyn Pokupec, Herrington and Company, Anchorage 49 
Renea Miller, Broker, Marc Realty, LLC, Anchorage- 50 
Marianne Murry, Executive Administrator, Board of Nursing 51 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 2 of 17 
Deborah Brollini, Public attendee, via teleconference 52 
 53 
Approval of Agenda-1(b) 54 
Commission members reviewed the meeting agenda.  55 
 56 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Markwood, seconded by Mr. Sumner, it 57 
was, 58 

 59 
RESOLVED to approve the meeting agenda for September 25, 60 
2019 as amended. 61 

 62 
Ms. Nelson asked about the discussion of Right Touch Regulations.  63 
 64 
Ms. Harris said that will be covered under Division Update, agenda item number 3.  65 
 66 
Ms. Nelson asked Ms. Walsh for clarification on the two different times for public 67 
comments; regular public comments and public comments on proposed 68 
regulations. In the Boards and Commission packet it states that our agenda is 69 
supposed to have two areas of public comments, one on non-regulatory items and 70 
one on regulatory items. Does the REC deviate from this as opposed to what the 71 
guide is outlining? Can the public give oral comments on the proposed regulations 72 
at this meeting and why not? 73 
 74 
Ms. Walsh said that this is up to the Commission when they proposed regulations. 75 
The Commission sends to the regulation specialist in Juneau that you want both 76 
written and oral comments. if that is not indicated at the time the regulation is 77 
proposed there will only be written comments. She said she believed that when the 78 
last Commission proposed regulations they only indicated written comments. They 79 
did not indicate oral comments or both. Going forward, when this Commission 80 
proposes regulations you can indicate if you want oral or written comments or both 81 
and then at the next meeting you will be allowed to receive comments according to 82 
what you indicated at them time you propose those regulations. 83 
 84 
Ms. Nelson asked that if someone wanted to give oral testimony isn’t it in the 85 
public’s best interest to accept oral testimony if they wanted to and not restrict it? 86 
 87 
Ms. Walsh said no, not after the public comment closed. If the Commission did not 88 
indicate oral comment when the public notice was sent out then you could not 89 
allow oral comment at the meeting only written comments. The type of comment 90 
the Commission indicated when the regulation was proposed it what will comments 91 
will be allowable.  92 
 93 
Ms. Nelson asked if once a decision has been made by the prior Commission we 94 
are bound by that and nobody can give oral comment today?  95 
 96 
Ms. Walsh said no you cannot but you can withdraw the regulation project and 97 
then open it up for another 30 days and indicate what type of comments you will 98 
accept, oral or written comments or both. 99 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 3 of 17 
 100 
Mr. Pruhs asked it there was a time limit on oral testimony? 101 
 102 
Ms. Walsh said it is up to the Commission. 103 
 104 
Mr. Royse asked when the Commission is looking at a regulation project and 105 
indicates what type of comments we will accept, do we do this on a per regulation 106 
basis or can we do a unilateral blanket on what this Commission will accept? 107 
 108 
Ms. Walsh said it would be a per regulation project because when it is public 109 
noticed, the public need to know their options. 110 
 111 
Ms. Markwood asked if that meant the Commission would need to schedule 112 
another meeting for public comments? 113 
 114 
Ms. Walsh said that would be up to the Commission. 115 
 116 
Mr. Royse asked that some additional items be added to the agenda. Clean up 117 
regulations, added as agenda item 7(e), fine matrix, added as agenda item 7(f), 118 
and add conversation regarding December meeting date, added as agenda item 119 
7(g). 120 
 121 

All in favor; Motion to passed. 122 
 123 
 124 
Statements of Conflicts of Interest-1(c) 125 
Mr. Sumner, Ms. Nelson and Ms. Matthews had no conflict of interest to disclose. 126 
 127 
Mr. Royse stated that one of the proposed regulations with the movement to 128 
approve designated continuing education for 4 years as opposed to 2 years, as a 129 
training provider he has a conflict of interest with that.  130 
 131 
Ms. Markwood said she had no conflicts of interest to disclose. However, she 132 
wanted to acknowledge that there is currently property management revision of 133 
regulations on the agenda under old business and she has a property 134 
management company, therefore there are may be regulations that may be a 135 
conflict of interest in the future. 136 
 137 
Mr. Pruhs said there is a conflict of interest as a trainer with the proposed 138 
regulation as Mr. Royse has indicated but he believes that the Commission 139 
member would need to recuse themselves from the vote at that time. 140 
 141 
Ms. McConnochie said she is also an education director not only in Alaska but also 142 
the lower 48 and other countries.   143 
 144 
Ms. McConnochie asked if there was any interest for those who do education to 145 
recuse themselves from the discussion on the designated education?  146 
 147 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 4 of 17 
No comments were heard.  148 
 149 
 150 
Agenda Item 2 – Public Comments  151 
Ms. Harris read into the record an email received from licensee Hugh Wade 152 
regarding continuing education. 153 

 154 
Sharon, 155 
 156 
I’m a big believer in ongoing professional education and I also think that the 157 
mandatory courses are unnecessary in a lot of ways and for a lot of reasons. 158 
 159 
Basically, I don’t learn a lot and feel like, after 13 or so years in the business with 160 
no real complaints, I know what a contract is, what is legal and isn’t, and how to 161 
conduct real estate business in an ethical, efficient way that adds value for my 162 
clients.  163 
 164 
Taking those required classes could be replaced with taking more substantial 165 
classes, if allowed. 166 
 167 
If a person wanted to try and get it so that, say, after 10 years as a real estate 168 
practitioner, if a broker had no complaints, and the mandatory classes could be 169 
waived as long as the broker took elective classes from any of a number of quality 170 
organizations (NAR, CCIM, IREM, NAIOP, etc.), how would you advise I raise this 171 
issue with the Commission?  What would be the most likely route to getting it 172 
approved?  Any advice you have would be great, and would be great to discuss on 173 
the phone, no need for a formal written response. 174 
 175 
Hugh 176 
 177 
Hugh J. Wade, CCIM 178 
Spire Commercial 179 
 180 
There were no other public comments.  181 
 182 
 183 
Agenda Item 3 – Division Update  184 
Sara Chambers, Director of the Division of Corporations, Business and 185 
Professional License provided Board member training to the Commission 186 
members.  187 
 188 
Break at 12:50 p.m.  189 
Reconvened at 1:00 p.m. 190 
 191 
Ms. Chambers presented Right Touch Regulation training to the Commission 192 
members. 193 
 194 
 195 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 5 of 17 
Agenda Item 4 - Approval of Meeting Minutes  196 
May 23, 2019 meeting minutes.  197 
 198 
 199 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson seconded by Mr. Royse, it was, 200 
 201 

RESOLVED to approve the May 23, 2019 meeting minutes.  202 
 203 
Ms. Nelson had some corrections. On page one under Roll Call it indicates Ms. 204 
Nelson attended the meeting via teleconferenced but she attended in person, page 205 
3, Ms. Harp’s group meets once a week not month, page 11- there is a question 206 
from Mr. Pruhs regarding teams that needs to be addressed at the next meeting, 207 
Page 12  there is confusion of which Commission members were reviewing, it was 208 
Ms. Nelson and Mr. Pruhs looking at Property Management regulations and Ms. 209 
Nelson and Mr. Royse looking at Consumer Disclosure and Waiver of Right to be 210 
Represented and Ms. Nelson and Mr. Pruhs will be looking at the Property 211 
Transfer form for the December meeting. 212 
 213 
Mr. Royse had a few changes. Page 6, there was a motion on who was working on 214 
disclosure, line 246, motion for Ms. Nelson and Mr. Royse to work on Disclosure 215 
and AREC form, and page 11, line 487- it is a 2 day train the trainer not a 3 day.  216 
 217 
 218 

All in favor. Motion passed. 219 
  220 
 221 
July 24, 2019 teleconference meeting minutes  222 
 223 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 224 
was, 225 

 226 
RESOLVED to approve the July 24, 2019 meeting minutes. 227 

 228 
Ms. Matthews asked that the meeting date be confirmed if it was either July 229 
24, 2019 or July 25, 2019 per the agenda. The meeting was on July 24, 230 
2019. 231 

 232 
All in favor. Motion passed.  233 

 234 
 235 
Agenda Item 5 – Investigative Report 236 
Statistical Report – 5(a) 237 
REC Investigator, Shyla Consalo, presented the investigation statistics for the 238 
reporting period of 05/09/19 through 09/09/19. There are 34 opened matters, 37 239 
matters were closed from the last report. A total of 19 matters remain open and 240 
ongoing or under active investigation or pending litigation. At this present time 241 
there in only one case pending litigation. 242 
 243 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 6 of 17 
Probation Report – 5(c) 244 
Investigator, Shyla Consalo, presented the probation report to the Commission on 245 
the behalf of Ms. Medina. Ms. Consalo stated that there six individuals currently on 246 
probation being monitored. Two individuals were released from probation. All are in 247 
compliance with their agreements except Mr. Sheldon and Ms. Collison. Mr. 248 
Sheldon did complete his CE hours and is on track to be released from probation 249 
on his probation release date next November.  Ms. Collison was offered a license 250 
surrender, which she is considering.  Her probation was on hold because her 251 
license lapsed.  252 
 253 
Investigative Process -Clarification & Questions – 5(a) 254 
Ms. Consalo gave the Commission a quick review of the investigative process.  255 
 256 
Commission members directed questions to Ms. Consalo regarding that process.  257 
 258 
Agenda Item 6 – Old Business 259 
Changes to AREC Consumer Disclosure & Waiver of Rights form-6(a) 260 
Mr. Royse said he has secret information from people of what they thought about 261 
of the new draft form and asked the Commission what they wanted him to do with 262 
it? 263 
 264 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 265 
 266 

RESOLVED to postpone discussion of the current draft form, 267 
AREC Consumer Disclosure and Waiver of Right to be 268 
Represented until the December meeting. 269 

 270 
 All opposed. Motion failed. 271 
 272 
 273 
 274 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 275 
 276 

RESOLVED to distribute, to the Commission, the 2 pages of 277 
feedback Mr. Royse received from the industry answering the 278 
question “How do you like the new form?” (new draft form of the 279 
AREC Consumer Disclosure and Waiver of Right to be 280 
Represented). 281 
 282 

 All in favor. Motion passed. 283 
 284 
  285 
Commission members discussed the Consumer Disclosure and Waiver of Right to 286 
be Represented.  287 
 288 
 289 

 On a motion duly made by Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Royse, it was, 290 
 291 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 7 of 17 

RESOLVED to put the draft forms of the Consumer Disclosure 292 
and Wavier of Right to be Represented as presented by Ms. 293 
Nelson and Mr. Royse out for public comment. 294 

 295 
 296 
Ms. Chambers spoke to the Commission about a Scoping Notice that is a 297 
preliminary notice, similar to a regulation project, to get comments and feedback 298 
from the public and then look at those comments and put out a regulation project. 299 

 300 
  301 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Royse, it was, 302 
 303 

RESOLVED to amend the previous motion to put forms out as a 304 
scoping project to be processed for 30 days for written and oral 305 
comments. 306 

  307 
All in favor. Motion passed. 308 

 309 
 310 

Commission members voted on the original motion.  311 
 312 
 All in favor. Motion passed. 313 
 314 
 315 
Property Management revised regulations-6(b) 316 
Ms. Nelson said she did not have anything at this time regarding property 317 
management regulations.  She said that as a committee they did have a really 318 
good session with the investigator with help from a licensee that practices property 319 
management to clarify some of the problems regarding security deposits. One of 320 
the things that came out of this discussion was that security deposit issues are not 321 
necessarily just contractual but there can also be violations of statutes and 322 
regulations on how trust accounts are handled.   323 
 324 
Ms. Nelson asked that Ms. Markwood, and her role as a property manager, to join 325 
this committee and perhaps have a public work session to look at the property 326 
management regulations. 327 
 328 
The Chair asked Ms. Nelson, Mr. Pruhs and Ms. Markwood to work on the property 329 
management regulation revisions as a public work session and bring back to the 330 
next meeting in December. 331 
 332 
The Commission members were in agreement.  333 
 334 
The property management meeting will be public noticed and Ms. Nelson will work 335 
with Ms. Harris to get that noticed.  336 
 337 
Proposed Regulations-6(c) 338 

 339 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 8 of 17 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 340 
 341 

RESOLVED to divide the question starting with Errors and 342 
Omissions Insurance regulations being one set and the 343 
regulations regarding course certification being the second set. 344 

 345 
All in favor; Motion passed.  346 

 347 
12 AAC 64.02.530- Standards of Equivalent Coverage 348 

 349 
On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 350 
was, 351 

 352 
RESOLVED to recommend the Department adopt regulation 12 353 
AAC 02.530 as proposed.  354 

 355 
All in favor; Motion passed. 356 
 357 

 358 
12 AAC 64.420 – Application for Course Certification 359 
 360 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Sumner, it was, 361 
 362 

RESOLVED to adopt regulation 12 AAC 64.420 as proposed.  363 
 364 

All opposed; Motion failed.  365 
 366 
 367 

12 AAC 64.440 – Instructor Approval 368 
 369 
On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 370 

 371 
RESOLVED to adopt regulation 12 AAC 64.440 as proposed. 372 

 373 
All opposed; Motion failed.  374 
 375 

 376 
12 AAC 64.460 – Withdrawal or Denial of Instructor Approval 377 
 378 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 379 
was, 380 

 381 
RESOLVED to adopt regulation 12 AAC 64.460 as proposed.  382 

 383 
All opposed; Motion failed.  384 
 385 
 386 

12 AAC 02.360- Real Estate Commission - Fees 387 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 9 of 17 

 388 
On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 389 
was, 390 

 391 
RESOLVED to recommend the Department adopt regulation 12 392 
AAC 02.360 as proposed.  393 

 394 
All in favor; Motion passed.  395 
 396 
 397 

12 AAC 64.073 – Recovery Fund Fee 398 
 399 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Nelson, it was, 400 
 401 

RESOLVED to adopt regulation 12 AAC 64.073 as proposed.  402 
 403 

All in favor. Motion passed.  404 
 405 
 406 

3:38 p.m. Commission members recessed for break 407 
3:48 p.m. Commission members reconvened 408 
 409 
 410 
Agenda Item 7 – New Business 411 
Recovery Fund Claims – Owens and Ostendorf – 7(a) 412 

 413 
On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Royse, it was, 414 

 415 
RESOLVED with the provision of AS 44.62.310(c) to go into 416 
executive session for the purpose of discussing matters which 417 
by law, municipal charter or ordinance are required to be 418 
confidential.  419 

 420 
All in favor. Motion passed.  421 

 422 
 423 
In executive session at 3:50 pm 424 
 425 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Matthews, it 426 
was, 427 

 428 
RESOLVED to come out of executive session.  429 

 430 
All in favor; Motion passed.  431 

 432 
Out of executive session at 3:59 p.m. 433 
 434 
 435 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 10 of 17 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 436 
 437 

RESOLVED that the Real Estate Commission pay out of the 438 
recovery fund the claims before us, to Laura Owens and Todd 439 
Ostendorf the amount of $12,400 each.  440 

 441 
All in favor. Motion passed.  442 

 443 
 444 
DCE Survey Results/presentation/select DCE topics/hours for 2020-2022 – 7(b) 445 
Commission members discussed the results of the DCE survey and DCE topics for 446 
2020-2022. 447 
 448 
 449 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Nelson, it was, 450 
 451 

RESOLVED to have 4 - 2 hour courses; 2 hours - Broker 452 
Supervision/Management, 2 hours - Ethics, 2 hours - Prohibited 453 
Conduct and 2 hours - Advertising and Social Media. 454 

 455 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  456 
 457 
 458 
Online Application – Salesperson by Exam – outreach – 7(c) 459 
Ms. Harris spoke about the Salesperson by Exam online application that is now 460 
available.  She said she is aware that applicants are required to mail in the Notary 461 
Signature Page is problematic and will work on the revision of the regulation with 462 
the Commission to make that change.  463 
 464 
E & O -RISC Report – 7(d) 465 
Ms. Harris presented the E & O RISC Report to the Commission. The report 466 
provided was for the Second Quarter 2019 and Fourth Quarter 2019.  She said this 467 
is the first report because before there were no claims. There is currently one 468 
claim.  469 
 470 
Clean up Regulations – 7(e) 471 
Mr. Royse presented regulations 12 AAC 64.059(d)(1)(B) and (d)(5) that need to 472 
be cleaned up.   473 
 474 
Ms. Markwood recommended looking at the clean-up regulations Mr. Royse 475 
presented when the Commission reviews the real estate regulations for their 476 
effectiveness as a group as mandated by the Governor. 477 
 478 
The Commission agreed to go through/work on the regulation workbook 479 
individually and review the real estate regulations. Then have a 2-hour publicly 480 
noticed ZOOM work session in February 2020, prior to first meeting of the year, 481 
and review and discuss the real estate regulations as a group with a possible 482 
second meeting.  483 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 11 of 17 
 484 
Fine Matrix – 7(f) 485 
Mr. Royse spoke to the Commission regarding the Fine Matrix adopted by the 486 
Commission February 26, 2010. He said he would like to revisit it.   487 
 488 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Markwood, seconded by Ms. Nelson, it 489 
was, 490 

 491 
RESOLVED to postponed discussion on the Fine Matrix until the 492 
December meeting. 493 

 494 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  495 
 496 
 497 
Conversation of December meeting date – 7(g) 498 
 499 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Nelson, it was, 500 
 501 

RESOLVED to move the December 11, 2019 meeting to 502 
December 18, 2019. 503 

 504 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  505 
 506 
 507 
Agenda Item 8 – Executive Administrator’s Report 508 
Licensing and Education Report – 8(a) 509 
The Commission reviewed the Licensing and Education Report as presented. 510 
There were no comments or questions.  511 
 512 
Status of processing applications 513 
Ms. Harris stated that Ms. Nelson had a question regarding the status of 514 
processing of applications. 515 
 516 
Ms. Nelson said Ms. Chambers’ presentation answered her question with the 517 
standards that are in place with the Division and that is what she was looking for. 518 
 519 
Recovery Fund Balance Report – 8(b) 520 
The Commission reviewed the Recovery Fund Balance Report as presented. 521 
 522 
Mr. Royse stated he had an observation that the Commission should be putting the 523 
budget items for personnel where they belong in the cost of running the 524 
Commission and not hiding it in the Recovery Fund. 525 
 526 
ARELLO Conference Report – 8(c) 527 
Ms. Harris gave her ARELLO conference report to the Commission. She said 528 
some of the highlights were: there is a national regulation reform movement, virtual 529 
offices-a lot of jurisdictions are reducing requirements for a brick or mortar 530 
requirement, and advertising of teams is a big issue.  She said it was a great 531 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 12 of 17 
conference and she appreciates the opportunity to attend.  She also said that there 532 
is also a Commissioner College that looked very interesting if one the 533 
Commissioners would like to attend. 534 
 535 
 536 
Agenda Item 9 – Discuss and Adopt Job Descriptions for Vice-Chair and 537 
Education Liaison  538 
Job Description for Chair provided 539 
The Commission members reviewed the job descriptions recommended for the 540 
Chair, Vice Chair and Education Liaison.  541 
 542 
Vice-Chair and Education Liaison job descriptions for discussion and adoption 543 
Mr. Royse stated some ideals for Education Liaison job description.  544 
 545 
Ms. Nelson asked what the Chair what her intention were for the job descriptions, 546 
for general knowledge or are we going to vote.  547 
 548 
The Chair stated her intention is to discuss and adopt job descriptions or if there 549 
are any changes to the job descriptions now is the time to do that. 550 
 551 
Ms. Nelson said that on page 38 of the Board and Commission Board Training 552 
guide there is already a description for Chair. 553 
 554 
Role of the Chair in Board and Commission Meetings  555 
Board and commission members, staff, and the public look to the chairperson to 556 
provide leadership during the meeting. The chair should understand the issues 557 
before the board or commission, know and understand the philosophies of the 558 
fellow members of the board or commission, and be able to bring the board or 559 
commission to decisions on difficult or complicated issues. The chairperson should 560 
be able to do all of the following effectively:  561 
 562 
Run a Meeting: The chair is responsible for running an orderly meeting and 563 
conducting public business in a fair and timely manner. Everyone looks to the 564 
chairperson for leadership. The chair grants or denies members, staff, and the 565 
public the floor to speak. 566 
 567 
Maintain Order: The chairperson should not allow cheering, hissing, booing, or 568 
other demonstrations from the audience. Nor should he or she permit board or 569 
commission members to become rude, confrontational, or argumentative with one 570 
another or the audience. Members should not cut off one another or staff when 571 
they are speaking, nor monopolize the floor when granted by the chair.  572 
 573 
Keep Business Moving: It is the chairperson’s job to keep business moving by 574 
bringing matters to a vote. 575 
 576 
Manage Public Testimony: By using a sign-up list, the chairperson will know who 577 
wants to speak on items before the board or commission. If a large number of 578 
people wish to speak to the chairperson should set a time limit per speaker 579 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 13 of 17 
(usually three minutes). Rambling, irrelevant testimony should be discouraged, as 580 
should commentary from the public during board deliberation of an issue. 581 
 582 
Maintain Relevance: Discussion between board or commission members and 583 
members of the public who are testifying should be limited to fact gathering that 584 
helps the board or commission make informed decisions. 585 
 586 
Use Parliamentary Procedure: The chairperson needs to know enough 587 
parliamentary procedure to run the meeting. Someone else may serve as the 588 
parliamentarian, but the chairperson must have a working knowledge of 589 
parliamentary procedure. 590 
 591 
Tie Things Together: The chairperson should have the ability to take into account 592 
public testimony, board or commission deliberations, and an understanding of the 593 
issues at hand when guiding the board or commission toward a decision. 594 
 595 
Implement Approved Actions: The chairperson should have the ability to create 596 
an action plan and follow through with staff or other entities on the actions decided 597 
at the meeting. 598 
 599 
Uphold the Law: The chairperson should guide the board to prevent decisions 600 
that are contrary to law or legal advice. The chairperson should minimize the 601 
board’s exposure to legal risk and seek its attorney’s advice through staff as the 602 
need becomes apparent, checking the agenda to schedule the attorney’s presence 603 
or tabling votes until the next meeting if needed. The chairperson may recess the 604 
meeting for a few minutes to confer with the board executive or division 605 
management regarding securing an attorney during a board meeting.  606 

 607 
 608 
On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 609 
 610 

RESOLVED to establish an education committee to address 611 
curriculum for broker and salesperson pre and post licensing 612 
education.  613 

 614 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  615 
 616 
 617 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, it was, 618 
 619 

RESOLVED that the position descriptions be approved. 620 
 621 
   622 

On a motion duly made by Ms. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 623 
was, 624 

 625 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 14 of 17 

RESOLVED that the role of the Chair position description be the 626 
one as outlined on page 38 of the State Board and Commission 627 
Member Guide. 628 

 629 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  630 
 631 
 632 
Commission members voted on the original motion to approve the position 633 
descriptions.  634 
  635 
All in favor. Motion passed. 636 
 637 
 638 
Agenda Item 10 – Elections for Vice Chairman & Educational Liaison 639 
Election of Education Liaison 640 

 641 
On a motion duly made by Ms. Markwood, seconded by Ms. Matthews, 642 
it was, 643 

 644 
RESOLVED to nominate Mr. Royse as Education Liaison.  645 

 646 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  647 
 648 
 649 
Election of Vice-Chair 650 
 651 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Royse, seconded by Ms. Markwood, it 652 
was, 653 

 654 
RESOLVED to nominate Ms. Nelson as Vice-Chair.  655 

 656 
 All in favor. Motion passed.  657 
 658 
 659 
Agenda Item 11 – Commission Members Comments 660 
Ms. Markwood said this meeting was very productive. She said she was very 661 
concerned that the Commission was not going to get through the agenda.  She 662 
said she was very happy to see that the Commission was able to address all 663 
issues. The training provided by Director Chambers was very informative. She is 664 
looking forward to working with everyone in the work session in regards to the 665 
regulation review.  She said there is an undertone in this Commission. She knows 666 
the Commission is still new and she is getting used to how everything works.  She 667 
appreciates the ability to work closely with all members and have good 668 
communications skills and get along as we work through this because we are here 669 
to represent the public. She said she sees the position as a real estate commission 670 
member as an honorable position and she wants to do the very best that she can 671 
and she respects everyone who has been appointed in these positions.  She wants 672 
the Commission to remember that they are here for the public and the Governor.   673 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 15 of 17 
 674 
Mr. Pruhs stated that Ms. Chambers said the Commission should look their goals 675 
strategically and that is what he is trying to do. He said with property management 676 
he believes a lot of the issues are with education. Can we have a property 677 
management endorsement on the license from our education hours we already 678 
require? Two years down the road think about our licensing education criteria. 679 
Think about having a licensing endorsement if you practice property management. 680 
If you want to be a broker for property management, the broker and the licensee 681 
who is signing contracts should have a property management endorsement. Also, 682 
in education, should we have specific hours for a broker and associate broker? 683 
What education must a broker/associate broker have? His final thought was to 684 
have one of the Commission meetings meet in Juneau. He said the Commission 685 
has issues that come up and we should be talking to the legislators. Have the one 686 
in person meeting in Juneau.  687 
 688 
Mr. Royse said that many years ago the Commission meeting coincided with the 689 
Realtor convention and met in Juneau and he said there is a value in that. He also 690 
spoke about 18 years ago the Commission considered endorsing different areas of 691 
specialization but it came down to restriction of trade.  He said the Commission 692 
needs to do a better job with brokers. We need to get some team training. Another 693 
thing the Commission should be doing relative to some of the other problems, like 694 
property management, would be to do white papers and best practices in these 695 
areas. There could be a tool to get that information out there. Mr. Royse said 696 
another outreach would be to do some best practices in terms of correcting some 697 
of these mistakes that are out there. Another issue that the Commission should be 698 
looking into in unlicensed activity.  Zillow and out of state entities are coming into 699 
the state and misrepresenting what they do and we do not do a great job in this 700 
area for consumer protection. Also, someone should attend those get rich 701 
seminars that are giving wrong information and start looking at unlicensed activity 702 
because of the nature of the way this industry is evolving. Everything to remote 703 
brokerages and start addressing what the issues are and some of this out of state 704 
intrusion of licensed entities. He said all consumers lose and we should look at this 705 
for next year.  706 
 707 
Ms. Matthews wanted to thank Director Chambers on the excellent training and the 708 
very good feedback. She also wanted to thank staff as well. She said as a public 709 
member it is really nice to receive all the background that was provided and the 710 
availability to ask questions, she really appreciates it. She said the Commission is 711 
very fortunate to have staff as well as Shyla. Shyla has made great progress on 712 
the claims and seeing that consistency is definitely good. She said thank you and 713 
she looks forward to diving into the regulations.   714 
 715 
Ms. Nelson said one of the key things the Commission said they were going to do 716 
this cycle was teams. She wanted to remind staff to give the Commission a  717 
number of the current teams that Mr. Pruhs has asked for from the last meeting, 718 
not that you have any numbers but to give what you have. She said at some point 719 
the Commission will have to address the E & O Insurance issue. She said there 720 
were a number of non-realtors, despite the realtors being in favor, that were not in 721 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 16 of 17 
favor of E & O. She thinks the numbers are really showing that it is not a good use 722 
of money. Maybe there will be a burst of claims that are going out but spending 723 
close to $8,000 of money going out of state and we are only paying $2,000 out in 724 
claims? That company is doing well. We could use that money for education or to 725 
reimburse the recovery fund.  She said that Nancy needs more support from a 726 
Committee, specifically for communication, which was not covered at this meeting. 727 
She also encouraged the Commission to support and push for digital notary which 728 
will make a big difference for the real estate industry and thanked the Commission 729 
for a great meeting. 730 
 731 
Mr. Sumner also wanted to thank Ms. Chambers for the training today. He said he 732 
also looks forward to reviewing the regulations in 2020.  733 
 734 
Ms. Chambers made the Commission members aware of the regulation 735 
questionnaire that is required to be completed by Commission members when 736 
there is a proposed regulation so we can provide this to the public.  Ms. Chambers 737 
thanked the Commission members for their time and if they have any questions 738 
regarding their responsibilities or staff’s responsibilities, just send her an email any 739 
time.  740 
 741 
Ms. McConnochie thanked Ms. Walsh, and Ms. Harris for their hard work. She also 742 
thanked Ms. Chambers for the huge amount of time she took out of her schedule 743 
to give the Commission training. She said she believed that it was important to 744 
receive the information from Ms. Chambers on how the Commission should work.  745 
She stated that the Commission needs to figure out a way to work together. She is 746 
not the enemy. She said we need to relax a little but also understand we are here 747 
for 2 major purposes. One, to protect the public and two, to give good information 748 
to licensees so they can make good decisions with correct information.  She would 749 
like the next meeting to work a bit smoother and looks forward to seeing everybody 750 
on December 18, 2019.  751 
 752 
 753 

On a motion duly made by Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Royse, it was, 754 
 755 

RESOLVED to adjourn.  756 
 757 
 All in favor. Motion passed. 758 
 759 
 760 
Meeting adjourned at 4:51 p.m.  761 
 762 
The next meeting will be held December 18, 2019 in Anchorage. 763 

 764 
 765 
Prepared and submitted by: 766 
Real Estate Commission Staff 767 
 768 
Approved: 769 



 
Real Estate Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
September 25, 2019 
Page 17 of 17 

 770 
______________________________ 771 
REC Chairperson 772 
Alaska Real Estate Commission 773 
 774 
Date: ___________ 775 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee Reports 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Property Management Committee 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Education Committee 
 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Old Business 
 

  
 
 









Jerry
Draft

Jerry
Draft



 
 

ALASKA REAL ESTATE COMMISSION  

WAIVER OF RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED 

  

About This Form:  

Occasionally, a licensee is “representing” a consumer (buyer or lessee) that has an interest in acquiring a property where another 

consumer (seller or lessor) is also “represented” by the same licensee. By statute, when this occurs the consumer must agree to allow 

the licensee to act in a “Neutral” capacity and sign a Waiver of Right to be Represented as outlined below,  or the Licensee may reduce 

the level of service provided to the consumer to Specific Assistance as detailed below. 

In Alaska, real estate licensees are required by law to provide this document and obtain your signature acknowledging your receipt and 

consent, prior to providing specific assistance, in conjunction with the Alaska Real Estate Consumer Disclosure (form 08-4145), outlining 

the duties of a real estate licensee when acting in a Neutral Licensee capacity. 

Duties of Specific Assistance 
1. Exercise of reasonable skill and care; 
2. Honest and good faith dealing; 
3. Timely presentation of all written communications; 
4. Disclosing all material information known by a licensee regarding the physical condition of a property; 
5. Timely accounting of all money and property received by a licensee; 

 

Additional Duties owed when offering Representation or by a Neutral Licensee include: 
1. Not intentionally taking actions which are adverse or detrimental to a consumer; 

2. Timely disclosure of conflicts of interest to both consumers for whom the licensee is providing specific assistance; 
3. Advising a consumer to seek independent expert counsel if a matter is outside the expertise of a licensee; 

4. Not disclosing consumer confidential information during or after representation without the written consent of the 
consumer unless required by law; and 

5. Not disclosing the terms or the amount of money a consumer is willing to pay or accept for a property if different 
        than what the consumer has offered or accepted for a property. 
 

Waiver of Right to be Represented  

Releases the Licensee from the statutory requirement to offer the following Duties: 
1. Making a good faith and continuous effort to accomplish a consumer’s real estate objective(s) 
 

 
 

   Date  Date 

 

Real Estate Licensee    Date   Real Estate Company        Date 
 
 
If authorized by consumers, the neutral licensee may analyze and provide information on the merits of a property or transaction, discuss 
price terms and conditions that might be offered or accepted, and suggest compromise solutions to assist them in reaching an agreement. 

Additional Authorization:  

I hereby authorize the “neutral” licensee to engage in the following conduct in a good faith effort to assist in reaching final 

agreement in a real estate transaction: 

•••• Analyzing, providing information, and reporting on the merits of the transaction to each consumer; 

•••• Discussing the price, terms, or conditions that each consumer would or should offer or accept; or 

•••• Suggesting compromises in the consumer’s respective bargaining positions. 

    Date     Date 
08-4212 (06/2019) 

Jerry
Draft

Jerry
Draft



12 AAC 64.059. REVIEW OF LICENSE APPLICATIONS. (a) An applicant who meets the requirements on the 
relevant checklist set out in this section has demonstrated the necessary qualifications for the license applied for. An 
applicant who does not meet the requirements on that checklist or whose responses on the form for application do 
not clearly show that the applicant is qualified to receive a license will not be issued a license unless the commission 
further reviews the application and determines that the applicant meets the qualifications in AS 08.88 and this 
chapter for that license.  
(b) The following checklist is established by the commission for review of an application for a salesperson license; a 
salesperson license will be issued to an applicant who  
(1) submits a completed form for application under this chapter, including  
(A) the applicant's name, mailing address, and telephone number;  
(B) the applicant's date of birth that shows the applicant is at least 19 years old;  
(C) the applicant's employing broker's name, current and active license number, business name, telephone number, 
mailing address, and signature;  
(D) "no" answers to all questions on the form dealing with felony indictments or convictions and license actions; 
and  
(E) the applicant's notarized signature certifying that the information on the form is true and correct to the 
best of the applicant's knowledge;  
(2) has passed the examination for real estate salespersons;  
(3) files the completed form for application with the division within six months of passing the examination for real 
estate salespersons as calculated under 12 AAC 64.060(e);  
(4) submits a prelicensing education certificate or a transcript from a college or university registrar verifying 40 
hours of prelicensing education approved by the commission;  
(5) pays the application and initial license fees established in 12 AAC 02.360; and  
(6) pays the recovery fund fee established in 12 AAC 64.073.  
(c) The following checklist is established by the commission for reviewing an application for a salesperson license 
by endorsement; a salesperson license by endorsement will be issued to an applicant who  
(1) meets the requirements in (b)(1), (b)(5), and (b)(6) of this section;  
(2) has passed the state law portion of the examination for real estate salespersons;  
(3) files the completed form for application with the division within six months of passing the state law portion of 
the examination for real estate salespersons as calculated under 12 AAC 64.060(e);  
(4) provides a license history from the licensing authorities in all other states in which the applicant holds a real 
estate license that shows the applicant meets the requirements in 12 AAC 64.061(c) for a valid and active license;  
(5) submits documentation that the applicant met education requirements that covered the topics and hours listed in 
12 AAC 64.063(c)(1) - (c)(6) and (c)(8) to obtain a license in another jurisdiction; and  
(6) submits evidence of completing six contact hours of course work on Alaska real estate license law as required in 
12 AAC 64.063(c)(7).  
(d) The following checklist is established by the commission for reviewing an application for an associate broker 
license; an associate broker license will be issued to an applicant who  
 (1) submits a completed form for application, including  
(A) the applicant's name, mailing address, and telephone number;  
(B) the applicant's date of birth that shows the applicant is at least 21 years old;  
(C) the applicant's employing broker's name, current and active license number, business name, telephone number, 
mailing address, and signature;  
(D) "no" answers to all questions on the form dealing with felony indictments or convictions and license actions; 
and  
(E) the applicant's notarized signature certifying that the information on the form is true and correct to the 
best of the applicant's knowledge;  
(2) has passed the examination for real estate brokers;  
(3) files the completed application with the division within six months of passing the real estate broker examination 
as calculated under 12 AAC 64.060(e);  
(4) submits a broker training education certificate or a transcript from a college or university registrar verifying 30 
hours of broker training education approved by the commission;  
(5) submits a statement, signed by the brokers who employed the applicant, verifying that the applicant has at least 
24 months of active and continuous experience as a real estate licensee within the 36 months before the date of 
application for an associate broker license; and  
(6) pays the transfer of license fee established in 12 AAC 02.360.  



(e) The following checklist is established by the commission for review of an application for a broker license; a 
broker license will be issued to an applicant who  
(1) meets the requirements of (d)(1) - (d)(5) of this section or is currently licensed in the state as an associate broker;  
(2) submits a completed office registration form that includes the information required in 12 AAC 64.110(e); and  
(3) pays the office registration fee and transfer of license fee established in 12 AAC 02.360.  
(f) The following checklist is established by the commission for review of an application for an associate broker 
license by endorsement. An associate broker license by endorsement will be issued to an applicant who  
(1) meets the requirements in (d)(1) of this section;  
(2) has passed the state law portion of the examination for real estate brokers;  
(3) files the completed form for application with the division within six months of passing the state law portion of 
the examination for real estate brokers as calculated under 12 AAC 64.060(e);  
(4) provides a license history from the licensing authorities in all other states in which the applicant holds a real 
estate license that shows the applicant meets the requirements in 12 AAC 64.061(c) for a valid and active license;  
(5) submits documentation that the applicant met education requirements that covered the topics and hours listed in 
12 AAC 64.063(b) to obtain a broker or associate broker license in another jurisdiction;  
(6) submits documentation that the applicant has completed six contact hours of course work on Alaska real estate 
license law and Alaska landlord tenant law as required in 12 AAC 64.063(c);  
(7) pays the application and initial license fees established in 12 AAC 02.360; and  
(8) pays the recovery fund fee established in 12 AAC 64.073.  
(g) The following checklist is established by the commission for review of an application for a broker license by 
endorsement. A broker license by endorsement will be issued to an applicant who  
(1) meets the requirements of (f) of this section;  
(2) submits a completed office registration form that includes the information required in 12 AAC 64.110(e); and  
(3) pays the office registration fee established in 12 AAC 02.360.  
(h) Notwithstanding the requirements of (b) ─ (g) of this section, a license will not be issued to an applicant whose 
license history on the application form is incomplete or shows a license disciplinary action or investigation taken or 
pending. Applications showing a disciplinary action or investigation shall be referred to the commission for further 
review.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

New Business 
 

  
 
 



From: Francois, Greg A (CED)
To: Harris, Nancy A (CED)
Cc: Whaley, Amber L (CED); Lipker, Sonia L (CED)
Subject: FW: Fine Matrix
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2019 8:30:19 AM
Attachments: Fine Matrix.pdf

Good Morning Nancy,
 
Yes there are several Boards, NUR, MED, GUI that use matrix’s. The Boards use this as a guide
in order to assign discipline. Investigations only gives advice (when asked) for the formulation
of the matrix but the Board itself votes on the record to either adopt or reject a matrix. The
Guide Board has posted their matrix on the public website.
 
When an investigator presents a case to a Board member for review, they will include 3-5 case
precedents from past cases with similar fact patterns. I would recommend that you visit with
Lisa & Mariann at the Nursing Board to get an idea of how their Board works with the Matrix
since they also are relatively new.
 
Having a guideline that the Board can refer to in assigning discipline shows consistency. If any
Board member goes outside of the normal case precedents they have to explain their
reasoning in accordance AS 08.01.075. Disciplinary Powers of boards Section (f) states “(f) A
board shall seek consistency in the application of disciplinary sanctions. A board shall explain a
significant departure from prior decisions involving similar facts in the order imposing the
sanction.”
 
The Board can also seek the advice and input from the Dept of Law. They are the ones who
will be representing the Division at a hearing, etc.
 
Let us know if anything further is needed
 
Greg
 
 
Greg Francois
Chief Investigator
DCCED/CBPL

550 W. 7th Ave Suite 1500
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
Ph: 907-269-7901
Email: greg.francois@alaska.gov

Any guidance provided by this electronic communication is not a binding legal opinion, ruling, or interpretation that may be
relied upon, but merely guidance concerning existing statutes and regulations. There may be other unique or undisclosed

mailto:greg.francois@alaska.gov
mailto:nancy.harris@alaska.gov
mailto:amber.whaley@alaska.gov
mailto:sonia.lipker@alaska.gov
mailto:greg.francois@alaska.gov



CATEGORY OF COMPLAINTS AND DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS


           CATEGORY 	
	


 TYPE OF LICENSE 
       AFFECTED 


DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY     AUTHORITY 


Advertisement		
Violations


Broker
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	


Failure	to	include	brokerage	name	in	any	form	of	advertisement AS	08.88.071;		
AS	08.88.401;
12	AAC	64.130(8)


•	$500	Fine	
•	3	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Trust	Accounts Broker	
		


Failure	to	keep	proper	trust	account	ledgers •	$3000	Fine
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Trust	Accounts Broker	
	


Prohibited	trust	account	activity •	$5000	Fine,	
•	12	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand	
•	License	Suspension
•	Probation


AS	08.88.351;
12	AAC	64.220


AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.351;
12	AAC	64.250


Disclosure	of		
Compensation


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson
	


Failure	to	properly	disclose	compensation	paid	to	another	licensee	in	
a	real	estate	transaction


AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.351;	
AS	08.88.655;
12	AAC	64.940


•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Absence	of		
Residential	Real		
Property	Transfer	
Disclosure		
Statement	or	Waiver


Broker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson
	


Failure	to	have	the	form	completed	or	a	signed	waiver	of		
disclosure


AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.930


•	$2500	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation											Page 1 of  4


•	$2000	Fine	
•	6	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Trust	Accounts Broker
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	


All	money	provided	to	the	brokerage	for	a	real	estate	transaction	
must	be	deposited	in	or	mailed	to	the	appropriate	trust	account	
within	5	days


AS	08.88.351;	
12	AAC	64.200







             CATEGORY 
	 	


 TYPE OF LICENSE 
      AFFECTED 


DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 


Unlicensed	Practice	
(Licensee	&		
Unlicensed	person):


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	


For	performing	activities	per	AS	08.88.161	and	12	AAC	64.140	
without	a	real	estate	license	


If	a	person	engages	or	offers	to	engage	in	an	activity	for	which	a	
license	is	required	under	AS	08.88.161	without	being	licensed	


AS	08.88.161;	
12	AAC	64.140	
(broker)


•	$1000	fine	for	each	
			incident;	
Fine	may	be	increased	
per	incident	dependent		
upon	nature	and	severity	
of	unlicensed	activity		


Proposed	Sanctions	
(Broker):	
•		$5000	Fine
•		Formal	Reprimand
•		Probation,
•		12	Hours	Education		


Proposed	Sanctions	
(Salesperson):		
•	$3500	Fine
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation
•	3	Hours	Education


Real	Estate	Office	
Violations


Broker	
		


•Failure	to	display	broker	and	salesperson	licenses
•Failure	to	register	the	office	with	the	real	estate	commission
•Failure	to	comply	with	proper	signage	requirements
•Office	name	violation


•	$1500-5000	Fine
•	6-9	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


AS	08.88.291;	
AS	08.88.321;	
12	AAC	64.110;	
12	AAC	64.112;	
12	AAC	64.115	


•	$5000	Fine	-	Broker/AB
•	$3000	Fine		-	Salesperson
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


AS	08.88.311;	
AS	08.88.321;	
12	AAC	64.110;	
12	AAC	64.112	


Operating	an	unauthorized	branch	officeBroker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson	
		


Real	Estate	Office	
Violations


             Page 2 of 4







            CATEGORY 
	 	


  TYPE OF LICENSE 
        AFFECTED 


DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS    DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 


Licensing Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	


•	Failing	to	notify	the	REC	before	changing	office	address	and		
			location
•	Failing	to	notify	the	REC	with	a	current	mailing	address,	and	
			if	active,	the	address	of	the	broker	employing	the	licensee


AS	08.88.291	(b)(c);	
AS	08.88.291;
AS	08.88.301:
AAC	64.115


•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education


Licensing Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
		


	Falsification	of	an	application May	result	in	license		
denial	if	new	applicant;		
Renewal	application:
•	$2000	Fine	
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Listing	or		
Management		
Contracts


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
	


•Failing	to	keep	a	complete	record	for	three	years	for	all	real	estate	
	transactions
•Failure	to	provide	upon	request	to	any	principal	in	a	transaction	
	an	accounting	for	all	money	or	other	property	collected	or	held	in	
	a	transaction


•	$3000	Fine	each		
			incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


AS	08.88.401;	
12	AAC	64.160


AS	08.88.351;
AS	08.88.341


AREC	Pamphlet Broker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson
	


Providing	real	estate	services	without	first	obtaining	proper		
signatures	on	the	AREC	Pamphlet


AS	08.88.600;	
AS	08.88.610


•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Listing	or		
Management		
Contracts


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
	


Listing	property	without	a	RE	contract AS	08.88.351 •	$5000	Fine	each		
			incident
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Property		
Management


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson
	


Improper	property	management	activity	by	a	licensee AS	08.88.331;
AS	08.88.351;	
12	AAC	64.550;	
12	AAC	64.570


•	$1000	Fine	each	incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation            Page 3 of 4







            CATEGORY 
	 	


 TYPE OF LICENSE 
      AFFECTED 


DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 


Supervision Broker	
Associate	Broker


Supervision	Violations AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.125


•	$5000	Fine
•12	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Disclosure Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	


Failure	to	disclose	licensee	status	and	name	of	the	broker	or		
brokerage	to	all	parties	in	a	real	estate	transaction


•	$2000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


Submitting	an	offer Broker	
	


Failure	to	submit	an	offer •	$2500	Fine
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation


AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.130	(9)


AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.401;	
12	AAC	64.130	(13)


Misrepresentation
Fraud


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salsesperson
	


Usually	this	type	of	conduct	is	variable	and	not	succinct		 AS	08.88.600	Series •	Sanctions	imposed		
			include	suspensions	and
			revocations.		These	cases	
			are	usually	litigated		


Continuing		
Education


Salesperson	
Broker	
	


Failure	to	obtain	continuing	education AS	08.88.171;	
12	AAC	64.064


•	$2500	Fine
•	Plus	an	additional	fine	
		of	$50	for	each	continu-	
		ing	education	credit	hour	
		lacking
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Continuing	education		
			audit	for	the	next	two		
			renewal	periods             Page 4 of 4


Conflict	of		
Interest	


Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	 	
	


Failure	to	disclose	a	conflict	of	interest AS	08.88.391 •	$2000	Fine	each	
		incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation



lmbrown2

Text Box

(Rev. 02/26/10)











facts, circumstances, and information that may have changed any guidance provided in this communication.
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended for the sole use of the individual or entity to whom it is
addressed to and is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act (18 USC § 2510-2521), and may contain
Confidential Official Use Only Information that may be exempt from public release under the Freedom of Information Act (5
USC § 552). If you are not the intended recipient, you are prohibited from disseminating, distributing or copying any
information contained in this communication.
 
The State of Alaska cannot guarantee the security of e-mails sent to or from a state employee outside the state e-mail
system. If you are not the intended recipient or receive this communication in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail
and delete the original message and all copies from your computer.

 

From: Harris, Nancy A (CED) <nancy.harris@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 4, 2019 7:51 AM
To: Whaley, Amber L (CED) <amber.whaley@alaska.gov>
Cc: Francois, Greg A (CED) <greg.francois@alaska.gov>
Subject: Fine Matrix
 
Amber,
 
The REC created a Fine Matrix a number of years ago although it has not been used as far as I am
aware.  Some of the new Commission members would like to revisit the fine matrix for the REC and
start using it. 
My question to you is how many other boards have created a fine matrix and use it as a guideline for
investigations for fines?
Of the boards that do use a fine matrix, how long have those been in use and has it been a useful
tool for the investigators and the board members?
 
Thank you,
 
Nancy Harris
Acting Executive Administrator
Real Estate Commission
(907) 269-8168
 
 



CATEGORY OF COMPLAINTS AND DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS

           CATEGORY 	
	

 TYPE OF LICENSE 
       AFFECTED 

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY     AUTHORITY 

Advertisement		
Violations

Broker
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	

Failure	to	include	brokerage	name	in	any	form	of	advertisement AS	08.88.071;		
AS	08.88.401;
12	AAC	64.130(8)

•	$500	Fine	
•	3	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Trust	Accounts Broker	
		

Failure	to	keep	proper	trust	account	ledgers •	$3000	Fine
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Trust	Accounts Broker	
	

Prohibited	trust	account	activity •	$5000	Fine,	
•	12	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand	
•	License	Suspension
•	Probation

AS	08.88.351;
12	AAC	64.220

AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.351;
12	AAC	64.250

Disclosure	of		
Compensation

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson
	

Failure	to	properly	disclose	compensation	paid	to	another	licensee	in	
a	real	estate	transaction

AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.351;	
AS	08.88.655;
12	AAC	64.940

•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Absence	of		
Residential	Real		
Property	Transfer	
Disclosure		
Statement	or	Waiver

Broker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson
	

Failure	to	have	the	form	completed	or	a	signed	waiver	of		
disclosure

AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.930

•	$2500	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation											Page 1 of  4

•	$2000	Fine	
•	6	hours	of	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Trust	Accounts Broker
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	

All	money	provided	to	the	brokerage	for	a	real	estate	transaction	
must	be	deposited	in	or	mailed	to	the	appropriate	trust	account	
within	5	days

AS	08.88.351;	
12	AAC	64.200



             CATEGORY 
	 	

 TYPE OF LICENSE 
      AFFECTED 

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 

Unlicensed	Practice	
(Licensee	&		
Unlicensed	person):

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	

For	performing	activities	per	AS	08.88.161	and	12	AAC	64.140	
without	a	real	estate	license	

If	a	person	engages	or	offers	to	engage	in	an	activity	for	which	a	
license	is	required	under	AS	08.88.161	without	being	licensed	

AS	08.88.161;	
12	AAC	64.140	
(broker)

•	$1000	fine	for	each	
			incident;	
Fine	may	be	increased	
per	incident	dependent		
upon	nature	and	severity	
of	unlicensed	activity		

Proposed	Sanctions	
(Broker):	
•		$5000	Fine
•		Formal	Reprimand
•		Probation,
•		12	Hours	Education		

Proposed	Sanctions	
(Salesperson):		
•	$3500	Fine
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation
•	3	Hours	Education

Real	Estate	Office	
Violations

Broker	
		

•Failure	to	display	broker	and	salesperson	licenses
•Failure	to	register	the	office	with	the	real	estate	commission
•Failure	to	comply	with	proper	signage	requirements
•Office	name	violation

•	$1500-5000	Fine
•	6-9	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

AS	08.88.291;	
AS	08.88.321;	
12	AAC	64.110;	
12	AAC	64.112;	
12	AAC	64.115	

•	$5000	Fine	-	Broker/AB
•	$3000	Fine		-	Salesperson
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

AS	08.88.311;	
AS	08.88.321;	
12	AAC	64.110;	
12	AAC	64.112	

Operating	an	unauthorized	branch	officeBroker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson	
		

Real	Estate	Office	
Violations

             Page 2 of 4



            CATEGORY 
	 	

  TYPE OF LICENSE 
        AFFECTED 

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS    DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 

Licensing Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	

•	Failing	to	notify	the	REC	before	changing	office	address	and		
			location
•	Failing	to	notify	the	REC	with	a	current	mailing	address,	and	
			if	active,	the	address	of	the	broker	employing	the	licensee

AS	08.88.291	(b)(c);	
AS	08.88.291;
AS	08.88.301:
AAC	64.115

•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education

Licensing Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
		

	Falsification	of	an	application May	result	in	license		
denial	if	new	applicant;		
Renewal	application:
•	$2000	Fine	
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Listing	or		
Management		
Contracts

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
	

•Failing	to	keep	a	complete	record	for	three	years	for	all	real	estate	
	transactions
•Failure	to	provide	upon	request	to	any	principal	in	a	transaction	
	an	accounting	for	all	money	or	other	property	collected	or	held	in	
	a	transaction

•	$3000	Fine	each		
			incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

AS	08.88.401;	
12	AAC	64.160

AS	08.88.351;
AS	08.88.341

AREC	Pamphlet Broker	
Associate	Broker
Salesperson
	

Providing	real	estate	services	without	first	obtaining	proper		
signatures	on	the	AREC	Pamphlet

AS	08.88.600;	
AS	08.88.610

•	$1000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Listing	or		
Management		
Contracts

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	
	

Listing	property	without	a	RE	contract AS	08.88.351 •	$5000	Fine	each		
			incident
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Property		
Management

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson
	

Improper	property	management	activity	by	a	licensee AS	08.88.331;
AS	08.88.351;	
12	AAC	64.550;	
12	AAC	64.570

•	$1000	Fine	each	incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation            Page 3 of 4



            CATEGORY 
	 	

 TYPE OF LICENSE 
      AFFECTED 

DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS 	 																		DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY      AUTHORITY 

Supervision Broker	
Associate	Broker

Supervision	Violations AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.125

•	$5000	Fine
•12	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Disclosure Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	

Failure	to	disclose	licensee	status	and	name	of	the	broker	or		
brokerage	to	all	parties	in	a	real	estate	transaction

•	$2000	Fine
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

Submitting	an	offer Broker	
	

Failure	to	submit	an	offer •	$2500	Fine
•	6	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

AS	08.88.071;	
12	AAC	64.130	(9)

AS	08.88.071;
AS	08.88.401;	
12	AAC	64.130	(13)

Misrepresentation
Fraud

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salsesperson
	

Usually	this	type	of	conduct	is	variable	and	not	succinct		 AS	08.88.600	Series •	Sanctions	imposed		
			include	suspensions	and
			revocations.		These	cases	
			are	usually	litigated		

Continuing		
Education

Salesperson	
Broker	
	

Failure	to	obtain	continuing	education AS	08.88.171;	
12	AAC	64.064

•	$2500	Fine
•	Plus	an	additional	fine	
		of	$50	for	each	continu-	
		ing	education	credit	hour	
		lacking
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Continuing	education		
			audit	for	the	next	two		
			renewal	periods             Page 4 of 4

Conflict	of		
Interest	

Broker	
Associate	Broker	
Salesperson	 	
	

Failure	to	disclose	a	conflict	of	interest AS	08.88.391 •	$2000	Fine	each	
		incident
•	3	Hours	Education
•	Formal	Reprimand
•	Probation

lmbrown2
Text Box
(Rev. 02/26/10)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PearsonVue Contract and  
Overall Pass Rates 

 

  
 
 





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Consideration of forming a 
Communication Committee 

 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Division Update 
 

  
 
 



Department of Commerce Community, and Economic Development
Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Real Estate Commission FY 14 FY 15 Biennium FY 16 FY 17 Biennium FY 18 FY 19 Biennium

Revenue   
Revenue from License Fees 1,139,844$        322,870$            1,462,714$        1,086,258$        297,161$            1,383,419$        766,875$            282,453$            1,049,328$       
Allowable Third Party Reimbursements ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      
TOTAL REVENUE 1,139,844$        322,870$            1,462,714$        1,086,258$        297,161$            1,383,419$        766,875$            282,453$            1,049,328$       

Expenditures
Non Investigation Expenditures 

1000 ‐ Personal Services 179,769              121,773              301,543              137,073              118,908              255,981              115,076              120,856              235,932             
2000 ‐ Travel 12,096                13,013                25,109                12,781                6,803                  19,584                15,632                5,036                  20,668               
3000 ‐ Services 24,221                20,404                44,624                26,599                14,085                40,684                13,683                9,813                  23,496               
4000 ‐ Commodities 925                      600                      1,525                  1,229                  34                        1,263                  649                      ‐                       649                     
5000 ‐ Capital Outlay ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      
Total Non‐Investigation Expenditures 217,011              155,790              372,801              177,682              139,830              317,512              145,040              135,705              280,745             

Investigation Expenditures
1000‐Personal Services 118,045              94,399                212,443              91,700                90,606                182,306              51,422                83,598                135,020             
2000 ‐ Travel ‐                       ‐                      
3023 ‐ Expert Witness 4,651                  2,400                  7,051                  ‐                       4,922                  4,922                  ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      
3088 ‐ Inter‐Agency Legal 59,300                57,113                116,413              43,639                45,154                88,793                646                      530                      1,176                 
3094 ‐ Inter‐Agency Hearing/Mediation 6,956                  18,825                25,781                6,929                  19,603                26,532                ‐                       3,689                  3,689                 
3000 ‐ Services other 958                      958                     
 4000 ‐ Commodities ‐                       ‐                      
Total Investigation Expenditures 188,951              172,737              361,688              142,268              160,285              302,553              52,068                88,775                140,843             

Total Direct Expenditures 405,962              328,527              734,489              319,950              300,115              620,065              197,108              224,480              421,588             

Indirect Expenditures
Internal Administrative Costs 85,845                61,048                146,893              95,730                87,001                182,731              108,746              110,362              219,108             
Departmental Costs 55,495                68,943                124,438              54,735                58,811                113,546              53,154                57,353                110,507             
Statewide Costs 38,787                39,391                78,178                20,226                23,348                43,574                18,608                20,811                39,419               

   Total Indirect Expenditures 180,127              169,382              349,509              170,691              169,160              339,851              180,508              188,526              369,034             
‐                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 586,089$            497,909$            1,083,998$        490,641$            469,275$            959,916$            377,616$            413,006$            790,622$           

Cumulative Surplus (Deficit)
Beginning Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) (278,770)$          274,985$            99,946$              695,563$            523,449$            912,708$           
Annual Increase/(Decrease) 553,755              (175,039)            595,617              (172,114)            389,259              (130,553)           
Ending Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) 274,985$            99,946$              695,563$            523,449$            912,708$            782,155             

*

Statistical Information
Number of Licensees 2,761                  3,001                  3,066                  3,558                  4,129                  4,041                 

Additional information:

• Most recent fee change: Fee reduction FY20
• Annual license fee analysis will include consideration of other factors such as board and licensee input, potential investigation load, court cases, multiple license and fee types under one program, and program changes per AS 08.01.065.

No fee changes needed

• Fee analysis required if the cumulative is less than zero; fee analysis recommended when the cumulative is less than current year expenditures; no fee increases needed if cumulative is over the current year expenses  *

FY19 4th Qtr Board Report by Profession



Department of Commerce Community, and Economic Development
Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Appropriation (All)
AL Sub Unit (All)
PL Task Code REC1

Sum of Budgetary Expenditures Object Type Name (Ex)
Object Name (Ex) 1000 ‐ Personal Services 2000 ‐ Travel 3000 ‐ Services Grand Total
1011 ‐ Regular Compensation 112,459.93                               112,459.93  
1021 ‐ Allowances to Employees 45.09                                         45.09             
1023 ‐ Leave Taken 17,688.32                                 17,688.32    
1028 ‐ Alaska Supplemental Benefit 8,054.04                                   8,054.04      
1029 ‐ Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Benefits 17,289.74                                 17,289.74    
1030 ‐ Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Contribution 2,758.76                                   2,758.76      
1034 ‐ Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Cont Health Reim 1,779.46                                   1,779.46      
1035 ‐ Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Cont Retiree Medical 492.55                                      492.55          
1037 ‐ Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Benefit Unfnd Liab 6,507.96                                   6,507.96      
1039 ‐ Unemployment Insurance 231.63                                      231.63          
1040 ‐ Group Health Insurance 30,225.82                                 30,225.82    
1041 ‐ Basic Life and Travel 43.98                                         43.98             
1042 ‐ Worker's Compensation Insurance 1,168.36                                   1,168.36      
1047 ‐ Leave Cash In Employer Charge 3,026.76                                   3,026.76      
1048 ‐ Terminal Leave Employer Charge 1,769.35                                   1,769.35      
1053 ‐ Medicare Tax 1,790.91                                   1,790.91      
1069 ‐ SU Business Leave Bank Contributions 8.83                                           8.83               
1077 ‐ ASEA Legal Trust 69.35                                         69.35             
1079 ‐ ASEA Injury Leave Usage 1.32                                           1.32               
1080 ‐ SU Legal Trst 22.03                                         22.03             
1970 ‐ Personal Services Transfer (979.15)                                     (979.15)        
2001 ‐ In‐State Employee Surface Transportation ‐                   ‐                 
2002 ‐ In‐State Employee Lodging ‐                   ‐                 
2003 ‐ In‐State Employee Meals and Incidentals ‐                   ‐                 
2005 ‐ In‐State Non‐Employee Airfare 944.07             944.07          
2007 ‐ In‐State Non‐Employee Lodging 1,136.36        1,136.36      
2008 ‐ In‐State Non‐Employee Meals and Incidentals 750.00             750.00          
2009 ‐ In‐State Non‐Employee Taxable Per Diem 96.00               96.00             
2010 ‐ In‐State Non‐Employee Non‐Taxable Reimbursement 125.82             125.82          
2012 ‐ Out‐State Employee Airfare 869.88             869.88          
2013 ‐ Out‐State Employee Surface Transportation 53.06               53.06             
2014 ‐ Out‐State Employee Lodging 879.68             879.68          
2015 ‐ Out‐State Employee Meals and Incidentals 181.00             181.00          
3000 ‐ Training/Conferences 630.00                 630.00          
3002 ‐ Memberships 784.00                 784.00          
3035 ‐ Long Distance 40.11                   40.11             
3036 ‐ Local/Equipment Charges 254.54                 254.54          
3044 ‐ Courier 96.35                   96.35             
3045 ‐ Postage 1,391.45              1,391.45      
3046 ‐ Advertising 541.92                 541.92          
3050 ‐ Disposal ‐                       ‐                 
3057 ‐ Structure, Infrastructure and Land ‐ Rentals/Leases 860.56                 860.56          
3069 ‐ Commission Sales 133.00                 133.00          
3088 ‐ Inter‐Agency Legal 6,031.86              6,031.86      
3094 ‐ Inter‐Agency Hearing/Mediation 4,128.70              4,128.70      
3970 ‐ Contractual Transfer 97.00                   97.00             
Grand Total 204,455.04                               5,035.87        14,989.49          224,480.40  

FY19 4th Qtr Board Report by Profession



Department of Commerce Community, and Economic Development
Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing

Real Estate Commission
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Real Estate Commission FY 14 FY 15 Biennium FY 16 FY 17 Biennium FY 18 FY 19 Biennium
 FY 20                    

1st QTR 

Revenue   
Revenue from License Fees 1,139,844$       322,870$          1,462,714$       1,086,258$       297,161$          1,383,419$       766,875$          282,453$          1,049,328$       49,715$             
Allowable Third Party Reimbursements -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -$                   
TOTAL REVENUE 1,139,844$       322,870$          1,462,714$       1,086,258$       297,161$          1,383,419$       766,875$          282,453$          1,049,328$       49,715$             

Expenditures
Non Investigation Expenditures 

1000 - Personal Services 179,769             121,773             301,543             137,073             118,908             255,981             115,076             120,856             235,932             14,991               
2000 - Travel 12,096               13,013               25,109               12,781               6,803                 19,584               15,632               5,036                 20,668               32                      
3000 - Services 24,221               20,404               44,624               26,599               14,085               40,684               13,683               9,813                 23,496               2,944                 
4000 - Commodities 925                    600                    1,525                 1,229                 34                      1,263                 649                    -                     649                    -                     
5000 - Capital Outlay -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Non-Investigation Expenditures 217,011             155,790             372,801             177,682             139,830             317,512             145,040             135,705             280,745             17,967               

Investigation Expenditures
1000-Personal Services 118,045             94,399               212,443             91,700               90,606               182,306             51,422               83,598               135,020             18,089               
2000 - Travel -                     -                     -                     
3023 - Expert Witness 4,651                 2,400                 7,051                 -                     4,922                 4,922                 -                     -                     -                     -                     
3088 - Inter-Agency Legal 59,300               57,113               116,413             43,639               45,154               88,793               646                    530                    1,176                 -                     
3094 - Inter-Agency Hearing/Mediation 6,956                 18,825               25,781               6,929                 19,603               26,532               -                     3,689                 3,689                 -                     
3000 - Services other 958                    958                    518                    
 4000 - Commodities -                     -                     -                     
Total Investigation Expenditures 188,951             172,737             361,688             142,268             160,285             302,553             52,068               88,775               140,843             18,607               

Total Direct Expenditures 405,962             328,527             734,489             319,950             300,115             620,065             197,108             224,480             421,588             36,574               

Indirect Expenditures
Internal Administrative Costs 85,845               61,048               146,893             95,730               87,001               182,731             108,746             110,362             219,108             27,591               
Departmental Costs 55,495               68,943               124,438             54,735               58,811               113,546             53,154               57,353               110,507             14,338               
Statewide Costs 38,787               39,391               78,178               20,226               23,348               43,574               18,608               20,811               39,419               5,203                 

   Total Indirect Expenditures 180,127             169,382             349,509             170,691             169,160             339,851             180,508             188,526             369,034             47,132               
-                     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 586,089$          497,909$          1,083,998$       490,641$          469,275$          959,916$          377,616$          413,006$          790,622$          83,706$             

Cumulative Surplus (Deficit)
Beginning Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) (278,770)$         274,985$          99,946$             695,563$          523,449$          912,708$          782,155$          
Annual Increase/(Decrease) 553,755             (175,039)           595,617             (172,114)           389,259             (130,553)           (33,991)             

Ending Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) 274,985$          99,946$             695,563$          523,449$          912,708$          782,155$          748,164$          

*

Statistical Information
Number of Licensees 2,761                 3,001                 3,066                 3,558                 4,129                 4,041                 -                     

Additional information:

• Most recent fee change: Fee reduction FY20
• Annual license fee analysis will include consideration of other factors such as board and licensee input, potential investigation load, court cases, multiple license and fee types under one program, and program changes per AS 08.01.065.

• Fee analysis required if the cumulative is less than zero; fee analysis recommended when the cumulative is less than current year expenditures; no fee increases needed if cumulative is over the current year expenses  *

FY20 1st Qtr Board Report by Profession REC

Page 1

Updated: 10/31/2019
Printed: 11/14/2019



Appropriation (All)
AL Sub Unit (All)
PL Task Code REC1

Sum of Expenditures Object Type Name (Ex)
Object Name (Ex) 1000 - Personal Services 2000 - Travel 3000 - Services Grand Total
1011 - Regular Compensation 18,796.56                            18,796.56   
1021 - Allowances to Employees 2.46                                      2.46            
1023 - Leave Taken 2,461.31                              2,461.31     
1028 - Alaska Supplemental Benefit 1,305.33                              1,305.33     
1029 - Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Benefits 1,622.31                              1,622.31     
1030 - Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Contribution 730.18                                 730.18        
1034 - Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Cont Health Reim 454.03                                 454.03        
1035 - Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Cont Retiree Medical 183.19                                 183.19        
1037 - Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Benefit Unfnd Liab 1,686.95                              1,686.95     
1039 - Unemployment Insurance 66.66                                   66.66          
1040 - Group Health Insurance 4,493.15                              4,493.15     
1041 - Basic Life and Travel 6.49                                      6.49            
1042 - Worker's Compensation Insurance 183.17                                 183.17        
1047 - Leave Cash In Employer Charge 491.08                                 491.08        
1048 - Terminal Leave Employer Charge 269.80                                 269.80        
1053 - Medicare Tax 290.31                                 290.31        
1077 - ASEA Legal Trust 22.32                                   22.32          
1079 - ASEA Injury Leave Usage 4.76                                      4.76            
1080 - SU Legal Trst 9.57                                      9.57            
2009 - In-State Non-Employee Taxable Per Diem 32.00                                   32.00          
3000 - Training/Conferences 450.00                                 450.00        
3002 - Memberships 780.00                                 780.00        
3046 - Advertising 2,070.60                              2,070.60     
3057 - Structure, Infrastructure and Land - Rentals/Leases 162.81                                 162.81        
3094 - Inter-Agency Hearing/Mediation -                                       -              
Grand Total 33,079.63                            32.00                                   3,463.41                              36,575.04  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Investigative Report 
 

  
 
 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Executive Administrator’s Report 
 

  
 
 





 
 

                                             EDUCATION REPORT 
                                                 December 18, 2019     
                                                          (as of 12/2/19) 
 
 
         
 
Course Type       Currently Approved     
Pre-Licensing (SPL)                       9 
Broker Upgrade Pre-Licensing (BPL)                4 
Elective Continuing Education (ECE)                   387 
Designated Continuing Education (DCE)                      54 
Post Licensing Education (PLE)           70 

                                 Total: 524 
      

Instructor                               
Permanent                                                                 140 

 
New instructor - Anchorage         6 

     
Temporary Instructor          0 

 
 
 
 



Statement of Net Positions
Real Estate Recovery Funds
December 2, 2019

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

 For the Fiscal 
Year Ending  

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 454,264$          465,770$          392,207$          394,514$          277,675$          255,182$          138,343$          

Total Assets 454,264            465,770            392,207            394,514            277,675            255,182            138,343            

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 7,211                (30)                   1,517                (10,691)             11,230              6,729                11,230              

Total Liabilities 7,211                (30)                   1,517                (10,691)             11,230              6,729                11,230              

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for Education and Claims 447,053            465,800            390,691            405,205            266,445            248,453            127,113            

Total Fund Balance 447,053            465,800            390,691            405,205            266,445            248,453            127,113            

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 454,264$          465,770$          392,207$          394,514$          277,675$          255,182$          138,343$          

Average of 6/30/15 
& 6/30/16

Average of 6/30/16 
& 6/30/17

Average of 6/30/17 
& 6/30/18

Average of 6/30/18 
& 6/30/19

Average of 6/30/19 
& 6/30/20

Average of 6/30/20 
& 6/30/21

Average 2 year licensing cycle fund balance: 460,017$          428,988$          393,361$          336,095$          266,429$          196,763$          

Note: 

Note:  Per the State Comprehensive Annual Financial Report the State "funds are reported using modified accrual accounting which measures cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted 
to cash". 

Projected Actuals 

The total Liabilities is year to date 
For FY21 Liabilities projected using FY19 

I:\Revenue\Funds\Real Estate Recovery Fund\Real Estate Recovery Fund Financial Reports\FY20\Fund Report thru 12.02.19.19 Fund 1040 COA‐19
Page 1 of 3 12/2/2019



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Real Estate Recovery Fund
Actual for Years Ended June 30, 2015 through December 2, 2019
and
Projected for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Quarter 
Ended  

 Report 
thru  

  For the
Quarter 
Ended 

  For the
Quarter 
Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 
6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19 9/30/19 12/2/19 3/31/20 6/30/20 6/30/20 6/30/21

REVENUES
Licenses and Permits 38,425 126,910$   38,370       133,550 29,465 6,840 18,210 (1) 133,550 (1) 29,465
Interest and Investment Income 2,164 2,533         3,178         4,230 9,964 1,258 940 (2) 4,230          (2) 9,964          

40,589 129,443     41,548       137,780      39,429        8,098          19,150        -                 -                 137,780      39,429        

EXPENDITURES 
Personal Services 113,145 112,763     115,097     134,846      126,366      26,801        2,287          -                 -                 (3) 134,846      (3) 126,366      
Travel 0 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Commodities 0 89              -                 617             -                 -                 617             -                 
Services - Non-claims 732 5,085         13              10               5,000          -                 10               5,000          
Services - Claims & Associated Legal costs 0 -                 -                 -                 24,902        -                 24,800        24,800        24,902        

113,877 117,937     115,110     135,473      156,268      26,801        27,087        -                 -                 160,273      156,268      

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues Over Expenditures (73,288)     11,505       (73,562)      2,307          (116,839)    (18,703)      (7,937)        -                 -                 (22,493)      (116,839)    

Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Net Change in Fund Balances (73,288)     11,505       (73,562)      2,307          (116,839)    (18,703)      (7,937)        -                 -                 (22,493)      (116,839)    

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 527,552 454,264     465,770     392,207      394,514      277,675      258,972      -                 -                 277,675      255,182      
Fund Balances - End of Year 454,264 465,770$   392,207$   394,514$    277,675$    258,972 251,035 0 0 255,182$    138,343$    

(1)

(2) Projecting through FY20 based on FY18 rate of earnings.

(3)

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

For FY21, licenses and permits revenue projected to be the same as FY19.

For FY20, the annual personal services costs are  projected for the Executive Administrator to spend 10% and the Project Assistant to spend
100% of their time on Real Estate Recovery Fund related tasks.

ProjectedActuals

I:\Revenue\Funds\Real Estate Recovery Fund\Real Estate Recovery Fund Financial Reports\FY20\Fund Report thru 12.02.19.19 Fund 1040 COA‐19
Page 2 of 3 12/2/2019



Statement of Cash Flows
Real Estate Recovery Fund
December 2, 2019

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 

 For the
Fiscal
Year

Ended 
6/30/15 6/30/16 6/30/17 6/30/18 6/30/19 6/30/20 6/30/21

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts for Licenses & Permits 38,425$       126,910$     38,370$       (1) 133,550$     (1) 29,465$       (1) 133,550$     29,465$       
Payments to Employees (113,145)      (112,763)      (115,097)      (2) (134,846)      (2) (126,366)      (2) (134,846)      (126,366)      
Payments for Services/Claims -                   -                   -                   -                   (3) (24,902)        (3) (24,800)        (24,902)        
Other Payments (732)             (5,174)          (13)               (627)             (5,000)          (627)             (5,000)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (75,452)        8,973           (76,740)        (1,923)          (126,803)      (26,723)        (126,803)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and Dividends on Investments 2,164           2,533           3,178           (3) 4,230           (3) 9,964           (3) 4,230           9,964           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 2,164           2,533           3,178           4,230           9,964           4,230           9,964           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (73,288)        11,505         (73,562)        2,307           (116,839)      (22,493)        (116,839)      

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 527,552       454,264 465,770       392,207       394,514       277,675       255,182       

454,264$     465,770$     392,207$     394,514$     277,675$     255,182$     138,343$     

(1)

(2)

(3)  For FY20, the annual personal services costs are  projected for the Executive Administrator to spend 10% and the Project Assistant to spend 100% of their time on Real Estate Recovery Fund related tasks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

For FY21, licenses and permits revenue projected to be the same as FY19.

Projecting through FY20 based on FY18 rate of earnings.

ProjectedActuals

I:\Revenue\Funds\Real Estate Recovery Fund\Real Estate Recovery Fund Financial Reports\FY20\Fund Report thru 12.02.19.19 Fund 1040 COA‐19
Page 3 of 3 12/2/2019



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Future Meeting Dates 
 

  
 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   Texas REC Regulation Reform 
Information 

 

  
 
 



From: Chambers, Sara C (CED)
To: Walsh, Sharon J (CED)
Cc: Harris, Nancy A (CED)
Subject: RE: Gov. Greg Abbott reduces state licensing requirements and cuts fees
Date: Friday, November 29, 2019 10:23:25 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Great!  Hopefully he is sharing some of their REC strategies with the listserv. Is action on this topic on their agenda for
December?
 
Sara Chambers
Division Director
 
Alaska Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing
Inspiring public confidence through balanced regulation of competent professional and business services
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
P.O. Box 110806, Juneau, AK 99811-0806
commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl
Phone: (907) 465-2144
FAX: (907) 465-2974
 

From: Walsh, Sharon J (CED) <sharon.walsh@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 27, 2019 12:13 PM
To: Chambers, Sara C (CED) <sara.chambers@alaska.gov>
Subject: FW: Gov. Greg Abbott reduces state licensing requirements and cuts fees
 
Sara:
FYI…
Here is some news from the Texas REC EA, Doug Oldnixon. He’s a great guy and we’ve had a good relationship from
ARELLO interactions. He is retiring soon.
Looks like there are more states besides PA and UT, moving towards a “right touch” concept for occupational licensing
reform.
 
Sharon
 

From: arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org <arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org> On Behalf Of Douglas
Oldmixon
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 1:44 PM
To: 'arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org' <arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org>
Cc: Chelsea Buchholtz <Chelsea.Buchholtz@trec.texas.gov>
Subject: FW: Gov. Greg Abbott reduces state licensing requirements and cuts fees
 

Fellow Administrators –
The deregulatory impulse is gathering momentum and I wanted to share with you the influences we are experiencing
in Texas, as I am sure many of you are also encountering in your jurisdictions.  Because our agency just completed
our Sunset review in 2019, we are implementing a variety of measures that achieve some of the same goals as the
Governor’s letter directs.  Once our Commissioners and Board members approve the official agency response, I will
share those as well.  I have some additional ideas on a path toward increased license portability that I will also share
more broadly soon. I hope your upcoming holidays are filled with hope and joy!  Doug
 
PS. In case you had not heard, our current General Counsel Chelsea Buchholtz will become Executive Director
effective 1 Jan 20. You may have met her at the Annual Meeting in September. I will be around to help with a smooth
transition through at least the end of March.   

mailto:sara.chambers@alaska.gov
mailto:sharon.walsh@alaska.gov
mailto:nancy.harris@alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl
mailto:arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org
mailto:arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org
mailto:arelloadministrators@listserve.arello.org
mailto:Chelsea.Buchholtz@trec.texas.gov

GOVERNOR GREG ABBOTT

October 8, 2019

Dear State Agency Heads:

Reforming Texas’s occupational-icensing rles must be a piosity for all state leaders.  Sensible
licensing rules, when necessay, can protect the public from legitimate harm, but overbroad rules
licensing rules also discourage individuals from pursuing professions or prevent the unemployed —
or former inmates who have paid their debt to society — from building  better lfe.

1 commend legislators for their efforts to roll back onerous licensing rules this past session, and T
was proud to sign legislation that wil significantly ease those burdens on our citizens. But every
Tesan deserves the opportusity to earn 4 iving free from unnecessary state intrusion, and there is
‘more work to be done to eliminate basiers to work in Texas.

Today T ask you, 2s leaders of our state agencies, to take all appropriate actions under existing

statutory authority to help Texans in this important effort. Executive branch agencies that issue and

‘administer occupational licenses should act administratively to reduce unnecessary and burdensome
regulations that hust workers and consumers, including by:

« Assessing whether existing licensing regulations help or hinder Tesans’ right to earn  living;

*  Identifying less-restrictive alternatives to licensure, such as bonding, insurance, registration,
or certification;

 Identifying other jusisdictions with licensing requirements that are substantially equivalent to
Texas's licensing tequirements, as required by last session’s Senate Bill 1200;

* Recognizing substantially equivalent out-of-state occupational licenses for people who ae in
good standing in all states wheze they are licensed; and

* Accepting professional experience as a substitute for licensure in cases whete 2 person
‘moves to Texas from a state that does not license his ot her occupation.

Tn addition, executive branch agencies should reduce fees and burdensome educational requirements

* Developing and implementing plans to reduce license application fees to 75% ot less of the
national average for equivalent or comparable occupations;*

+ Al icensing agencies, including selfditected and semi-independent agencies, should provide the Office of
the Govesnor with a lst of those fees and their amouats; show what pescentage of genesated fees go to the
‘Genesal Revenue Fund as opposed to their costs of operations; and, if fees were to be reduuced, explain the

impact.
POSTOFFICE BOX 12428 AUSTIN, TEXAS 78711 512-463-2000 (VOICE) DIAL 7-1-1 FOR RELAY SERVICES.





State Agency Heads
October 8. 2019
Page2

 Reducing excessive educational and work esperience requirements, absent compelling
evidence that doing so would not adequately protect the public interest;

© Considering reductions in licensure and examination fees for Texas residents who are ligible
for certain public assistance programs; and

«  Expanding the acceptance of online continuing education credits for residents who cannot
attend continuing education classes in pesson.

Finally, esecutive branch agencies should remove barsiers to licenses for people with criminal
records where appropriate, including by:

©  Rather than relying on blanket esclusions for people with criminal records, publishing lsts of
specific criminal offenses that disqualify applicants from obaining o maintaining an
occupational license, or at least limiting the exclusion to oaly those offenses that directly
relate to the duties and responsibilities of the occupation; and.

*  Exempting arests that did not result in conviction or placement on deferred adjudication
community supervision for the pusposes of determining 4 person’s fitness for 2 licensed
oceupation, consistent with last session’s Senate Bill 1217

Esecutive branch agencies should review their occupational-licensing rules and identify which of
these administrative actions will be pussued, and report their findings to the Office of the Governor
by 1o later than December 1, 2019.

Thank you for your coopesation with this initiative and for your continued service to the State.
Easing licensing regulations will stay true to the Tesas Constitution’s protection for economic liberty
and will ensure that Texas semains a pro-growth, pro-opportuniy, and freedom-loving state.





 

GOV. GREG ABBOTT ORDERS REDUCTION OF LICENSING REGULATIONS AND
CUTTING OF FEES 
Gov. Greg Abbott has ordered state agencies to review and overhaul their licensing requirements, with an
eye toward providing Texans “the opportunity to earn a living free from unnecessary state intrusion.” And
he wants to see their plans to roll this out by Dec. 1, reports the Tribune’s Emma Platoff.   Read Platoff’s
full article here.   See the text of the full letter from Gov Abbott included below.

In a letter, Abbott said he wants to trim licensing regulations, reduce fees and educational requirements for
certain professions, and, “where appropriate,” remove licensing barriers for individuals with criminal
records. Several state agencies confirmed they received the letter and are preparing their responses. The
governor’s office declined to comment further on the letter. 

Why does this matter? The fees associated with occupational licenses annually generate tens of millions of
dollars in revenue for the state. Some of those dollars flow back to the agencies that levy the fees, for
overhead and other operational costs, while much of the money is fed into the state’s general revenue fund,
where it can be directed to other efforts.

Excessive fees?  Occupational licenses are intended to guarantee a minimum level of experience for
practitioners to protect consumer safety. Some conservatives argue that some of the state’s educational
requirements and fees are excessive and present unreasonable barriers for would-be practitioners. Abbott
ordered agencies to reduce license application fees to 75% or less of the national average for comparable
occupations.
________________________________________________________________________________
Sent to douglas.oldmixon@trec.texas.gov.  To contact the Texas Tribune, visit texastribune.org/contact.

 
 
An article on occupational licensing in Texas is related to the Governor’s letter. The Texas Real Estate
Commission is mentioned in a chart.

Occupational Licensing in Texas: How Much Is Too Much?
In the November edition of Fiscal Notes, released recently, the Comptroller’s office looks at
occupational licensing in Texas. Despite the state’s reputation for business friendliness,
some of Texas’ licensing requirements have been seen as unnecessarily burdensome,
leading the Legislature to abolish many license types and ease requirements for others.

In this issue, we also take a look at the expanding world of government transparency —
the move toward offering free access, via the internet, to federal, state and local
government data that can be highly valuable both to private businesses and communities.
Companies are mining such data for key insights into consumer behavior, while local
governments use the data to develop strategies for economic development, fine-tune
regulatory systems and further many other public purposes.
Our office does not monitor direct replies to this email address. To find contact information for
Comptroller's office employees and divisions, please visit Comptroller.Texas.Gov.

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Ftexastribune.us3.list-manage.com*2Ftrack*2Fclick*3Fu*3D3d0ce87edeeb6df90043897db*26id*3D905399ec64*26e*3D87bad267ff&data=02*7C01*7Cdouglas.oldmixon*40trec.texas.gov*7Ce8dcb3261c574baff03608d76f481155*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100227637197900&sdata=MXrhj8Tp2iza*2BgLdfL*2B1D*2BTBpgHIO0ZnfX2Ki2rffJo*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR42ySfKD$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Ftexastribune.us3.list-manage.com*2Ftrack*2Fclick*3Fu*3D3d0ce87edeeb6df90043897db*26id*3D5f838381d6*26e*3D87bad267ff&data=02*7C01*7Cdouglas.oldmixon*40trec.texas.gov*7Ce8dcb3261c574baff03608d76f481155*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100227637207857&sdata=cYrwQ0LqYvKhCsgf*2FLY3QJTnra7ISoUB6XnYofuoMu4*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bRz8e0SGy$
mailto:douglas.oldmixon@trec.texas.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Ftexastribune.us3.list-manage.com*2Ftrack*2Fclick*3Fu*3D3d0ce87edeeb6df90043897db*26id*3D73b139781e*26e*3D87bad267ff&data=02*7C01*7Cdouglas.oldmixon*40trec.texas.gov*7Ce8dcb3261c574baff03608d76f481155*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C0*7C637100227637297475&sdata=KF9G7kc9fiXPwI6eznz5wP5xX0vpmDAOJwF*2BEmQfKoQ*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR39oIb3-$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Flnks.gd*2Fl*2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJlbWFpbCI6Im1hcmsubW9vcmVAdHJlYy50ZXhhcy5nb3YiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoiMTAxIiwic3Vic2NyaWJlcl9pZCI6Ijg0NjY1MTUiLCJsaW5rX2lkIjoiNjk1ODEwMzg5IiwidXJpIjoiYnAyOmRpZ2VzdCIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vY29tcHRyb2xsZXIudGV4YXMuZ292L2Vjb25vbXkvZmlzY2FsLW5vdGVzLzIwMTkvbm92L2xpY2Vuc2luZy5waHAiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMTkxMTIxLjEzMjMxNTAxIn0.Y6Ba-kCouMf3o7ERaui4UTGZgTdqif6IpZlluN9zIHo&data=02*7C01*7Cmark.moore*40trec.texas.gov*7Cbe7ebac0551d4f958b2d08d76f1d828d*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100044854854942&sdata=niSGHV5ROVxDUnGE09gODAIg65WQFTp8l6lUHhMnfCs*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR9uykf_-$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Flnks.gd*2Fl*2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJlbWFpbCI6Im1hcmsubW9vcmVAdHJlYy50ZXhhcy5nb3YiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoiMTAxIiwic3Vic2NyaWJlcl9pZCI6Ijg0NjY1MTUiLCJsaW5rX2lkIjoiNjk1ODEwMzg5IiwidXJpIjoiYnAyOmRpZ2VzdCIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vY29tcHRyb2xsZXIudGV4YXMuZ292L2Vjb25vbXkvZmlzY2FsLW5vdGVzLzIwMTkvbm92L2xpY2Vuc2luZy5waHAiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMTkxMTIxLjEzMjMxNTAxIn0.Y6Ba-kCouMf3o7ERaui4UTGZgTdqif6IpZlluN9zIHo&data=02*7C01*7Cmark.moore*40trec.texas.gov*7Cbe7ebac0551d4f958b2d08d76f1d828d*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100044854854942&sdata=niSGHV5ROVxDUnGE09gODAIg65WQFTp8l6lUHhMnfCs*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR9uykf_-$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Flnks.gd*2Fl*2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJlbWFpbCI6Im1hcmsubW9vcmVAdHJlYy50ZXhhcy5nb3YiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoiMTAzIiwic3Vic2NyaWJlcl9pZCI6Ijg0NjY1MTUiLCJsaW5rX2lkIjoiNjk1ODEwMzkzIiwidXJpIjoiYnAyOmRpZ2VzdCIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vY29tcHRyb2xsZXIudGV4YXMuZ292L2Vjb25vbXkvZmlzY2FsLW5vdGVzLzIwMTkvbm92L29wZW5kYXRhLnBocCIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAxOTExMjEuMTMyMzE1MDEifQ.yktw30rGMdHMaD8cxagS4E1l6DlX9X3C-KWM8i6ZB1o&data=02*7C01*7Cmark.moore*40trec.texas.gov*7Cbe7ebac0551d4f958b2d08d76f1d828d*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100044854854942&sdata=LBdy*2FinDyWCR5Cq2nMNMWKruFUAobPTnv9kr6MrA*2BKU*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR6lVHuW1$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Fcomptroller.texas.gov*2Fabout*2Fcontact*2F&data=02*7C01*7Cmark.moore*40trec.texas.gov*7Cbe7ebac0551d4f958b2d08d76f1d828d*7C3c7fcd1575ca42d4b4440845c3c7e3c5*7C1*7C1*7C637100044854884815&sdata=QnkqRhAxRuEq*2FlMlLhHh3CF2tlZ27zxEM*2BVAKg1iWvg*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!9_CTV20a17M!-_p6vdDpzX2eQw3r4LFB4LNmUdUu0RfkzYX9uROinwalqfXkumEAAWjjrc3bR4h6J07y$


 
 
 
 





 

www.trec.texas.gov ● PO Box 12188 Austin, Texas 78711-2188 ● 512-936-3000 

          

November 27, 2019 

 
 
The Honorable Greg Abbott, Governor 
Office of the Governor 
State Insurance Building 
1100 San Jacinto 
Austin, Texas 78701 
 
Dear Governor Abbott, 

We received your October 8, 2019  letter regarding reforming Texas’ occupational‐

licensing rules.  The Texas Real Estate Commission (TREC or the Commission) shares 

your  commitment  to  balancing  the  appropriate  level  of  regulation  necessary  to 

safeguard  the  public  from  harm,  while  also  facilitating  economic  growth  and 

opportunity across Texas. 

Over the past five years, the total number of license holders that TREC oversees has 

increased approximately 20% to 197,151 in August 2019.  TREC licenses real estate 

sales agents, brokers (individuals and business entities), inspectors, and residential 

service  companies  and  registers  time‐share  plans  and  easement  or  right‐of‐way 

(ERW) agents and businesses.   Sales agents and brokers operate under a fiduciary 

obligation and must act  in the best  interest of a client  in a real estate transaction.  

Inspectors  are  licensed  to  perform  an  inspection  on  real  property  as  part  of  a 

sale/purchase  transaction.    Residential  service  companies  are  more  commonly 

referred to as “home warranty companies;” they sell service contracts for a certain 

period  to  maintain,  repair,  or  replace  aspects  of  a  residential  property.    The 

registration of a  time‐share  requires  the developer  to  register  the  timeshare plan 

before selling a timeshare interest in Texas.  And an ERW is a person or entity who 

negotiates  easements  on  behalf  of  a  company,  government  agency,  or  property 

owner.   

All licenses and registrations within TREC’s jurisdiction have responsibilities that the 

Texas Legislature has deemed to require regulation.  The Commission is committed 

to  examining  whether  current  laws,  rules,  and  practices  are  implementing 

regulations  in  the  least  restrictive means  consistent with  adequate protection of 

Texas  consumers.   Commissioners, with  the  support of  staff, have  renewed  their 

TREC Commissioners 
 
R. Scott Kesner 
Chair 
 
Bob Leonard 
Vice Chair 
 
T.J. Turner 
Secretary 
 
Jason Hartgraves 
 
Jan Fite Miller 
 
Barbara Russell 
 
Rayito Stephens 
 
DeLora Wilkinson 
 
Micheal Williams 
 
Douglas E. Oldmixon 
Executive Director 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 

ongoing examination process to  identify recommendations that can be pursued  immediately and have 

incorporated additional ideas into the ongoing strategic planning for TREC.  To that end, after thorough 

review of our occupational‐licensing rules and a robust discussion among your appointed policy‐makers, 

please find the following report of our findings. 

Sincerely, 

 
R. Scott Kesner, Chair 
Texas Real Estate Commission   



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 3 

 

 

Reduce Unnecessary and Burdensome Licensing Regulations 

Act administratively to consider actions that include the following: 

 Assessing whether existing licensing regulations help or hinder Texans’ right to earn a living 

 Identifying  less‐restrictive alternatives to  licensure, such as bonding,  insurance, registration, or 

certification 

 Identifying other  jurisdictions with  licensing  requirements  that are  substantially equivalent  to 

Texas’s licensing requirements, as required by last session’s Senate Bill 1200 

 Recognizing  substantially  equivalent  out‐of‐state  occupational  licenses  for  people who  are  in 

good standing in all states where they are licensed 

 Accepting professional experience as a substitute for licensure in cases where a person moved to 

Texas from a state that does not license his or her occupation 

TREC  recently  implemented  several  initiatives  through  the  rule‐making  process  that  reduce  licensing 

regulations in keeping with the Commission’s sunset bill enacted by the Legislature during the 86th Texas 

Legislative Session.  Those initiatives include: 

 TREC  has  eliminated  branch  office  licenses  effective  September  1,  2019.  Removing  the 

requirements for a separate license certificate for each branch office maintained by a broker or 

brokerage advances the goal to streamline and simplify licensing requirements.  

 TREC  has  eliminated  the  Texas  residency  requirement  for  license  holders  under  TREC’s 

jurisdiction.   The elimination of the residency requirement removes a barrier to entry  into the 

real estate field.   

 TREC  eliminated  the  requirement  for  a  separate  license  for  education  instructors.    As  of 

September 1, 2019, it is the responsibility of individual education providers to ensure the use of 

qualified instructors.  Qualifications for instructors are outlined in TREC rules.  Additionally, as an 

alternative to individual instructor licensing, TREC has established an audit program for education 

providers  and  courses  as  a  less  restrictive means  to ensure education providers  are utilizing 

qualified  instructors  and  adhering  to  requirements  for  course  content  and  delivery.    TREC 

adopted  rules on November 19, 2019,  to  conform  to  the  recently passed  legislation.   TREC’s 

Education  Standards  Advisory  Committee  (ESAC)  continues  to  review  education  rules  and 

processes  to  identify  and  recommend  changes  to  reduce  or  eliminate  additional  barriers  or 

burdensome licensing regulations applicable to education providers licensed by TREC. 

 TREC is currently considering proposed rules to significantly streamline and reduce the qualifying 

education  requirements  for  inspectors.    Currently,  there  are  three  inspector  license  types: 

apprentice, real estate and professional.   The more experienced  license types (real estate and 

professional) can be attained through two methods: a traditional apprenticeship pathway that 

requires  experience,  education  and  sponsorship;  or  a  substitute  experience  pathway  that 

substitutes additional education and fieldwork for the experience traditionally required under 

the apprentice pathway.  By rule, TREC seeks to reduce the total hours of coursework required 

for the substitute professional path, the most utilized path for licensure, to be more in line with 

other  states’  requirements. The proposed  rules would  reduce  the overall hours  to become a 

professional  inspector using the substitute path by 200 hours, from 394 to 194. The proposed 



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 4 

 

 

rules would also eliminate the previous requirement for repetitive coursework.  TREC postponed 

the adoption of these simplified rules to allow time for review by the Office of the Governor’s 

newly  created Regulatory Compliance Division.   The Commission expects  to  receive approval 

from the Regulatory Compliance Division in time to consider these proposed rules for adoption 

at  its  next  meeting  in  February  2020.    Once  adopted,  TREC  expects  a  four  to  six‐month 

implementation  period  to  allow  sufficient  time  for  education  providers  to  respond  to  the 

changes. 

In addition to these administrative actions taken by the Commission as a result of sunset review, TREC is 

considering more ways to eliminate or reduce barriers as part of its strategic planning process in 2020.  

These efforts, described more fully below, will require statutory changes and include the following: 

 Elimination and repeal of  the  Inspector Recovery Fund.   This  fund  is  intended  to compensate 

consumers who have obtained civil judgments against inspectors who lack the financial ability to 

respond to those judgments.   However, there have been very few claims made on the fund  in 

recent  years primarily due  to  the  requirement  since 2007  for  inspectors  to  carry  errors  and 

omissions  insurance  for  the  protection  of  their  customers.  Elimination  of  this  redundant 

safeguard and returning the funds to inspectors who paid into the fund is a fair way to reduce a 

financial and regulatory burden and the associated staff costs to administer it.  

 Increase potential  license portability.   Currently  TREC may waive  the  license  application  and 

examination fees and issue a license on an expedited basis to an applicant who is a military service 

member, military veteran, or military spouse who holds a certificate or license issued by a state 

or territory other than Texas that has licensing requirements that are substantially equivalent to 

the requirements for licensure in Texas.  22 Tex. Admin. Code §535.51(c).  TREC may also allow 

an applicant to demonstrate competency through passage of examinations in other jurisdictions, 

education,  experience,  letters  of  good  standing,  and  letters  of  recommendation.    These 

considerations of  substantial equivalency and demonstrated competency are conducted on a 

case‐by‐case basis.  Expansion of opportunities for license portability for people moving to Texas 

could remove unnecessary barriers.   

The Commission has less authority to accommodate applicants from non‐military backgrounds.  Certain 

coursework  may  be  waived  on  a  case‐by‐case  basis  if  an  applicant  has  already  completed  similar 

coursework, and the national examination requirement may be waived  if the applicant holds an active 

equivalent license in another state and passed the same accredited examination to obtain that license.   

The challenge for real estate sales agents and brokers from other jurisdictions is that the education and 

experience requirements for licensure in Texas exceed the requirements in most, if not all, jurisdictions.  

The Commission also does not currently have the authority to establish standards for determining the 

extent  to which  professional  experience  could  be  recognized  and  credited  as  equivalent  to  required 

education.  

Pursuant to SB 1200 passed by the 86th Texas Legislature, TREC  is conducting a study to  identify other 

jurisdictions with licensing requirements that are substantially equivalent to Texas’s for all license types.  

Once this study concludes, the Commission will use the results to examine whether the current Texas 



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 5 

 

 

requirements  are  the  least  restrictive mechanisms  for  licensing, while  protecting  the  consumers  of 

regulated services in this state.  Based on this study, TREC will consider as part of its strategic plan, seeking 

legislative changes to expand license portability. 

Reduce  Licensing  Application  Fees  and  Reduce  Excessive  Education 

Requirements: 

Do so whenever possible, including by: 

 Developing  and  implementing  plans  to  reduce  license  application  fees  to  75%  or  less  of  the 

national average for equivalent or comparable occupations 

 Reducing excessive educational and work experience requirements, absent compelling evidence 

that doing so would not adequately protect the public interest 

 Considering reductions in licensure and examination fees for Texas residents who are eligible for 

certain public assistance programs 

 Expanding the acceptance of online continuing education credits for residents who cannot attend 

continuing education classes in person 

TREC has  lowered fees several times  in the  last five years,  including  in March and November of 2019.  

Specifically, in response to Sunset Advisory Commission’s management directive to limit fund growth and 

provide straightforward fee setting, the Commission adopted rules on November 19, 2019 to reduce and 

simplify license fees.  The new fee rules will go into effect January 1, 2020.  These include eliminating fees 

to maintain online sponsorship relationships, paper processing fees, fees to create certificates, and fees 

associated with changing license holder information.   

Additionally,  TREC  is working  to  expand  and  improve  the  ability  of  license  holders  to  self‐serve  and 

conduct business with TREC more easily and seamlessly on their phones and other electronic devices.  

TREC is confident that these improvements will reduce administrative costs and allow further reduction 

and simplification of licensing fees.  TREC has already created an online application progress tracker for 

real estate sales agents and brokers and is working to implement similar online capabilities for all license 

types.  TREC is also working on technology improvements to display online in real time those continuing 

education requirements needed by each license holder to renew their license and to allow license holders 

the ability to upload supporting documents directly with an online application instead of sending those 

documents separately via email. 

TREC is also researching license application fees charged by other states to determine where TREC fees 

are in relation to other states.  Similarly, TREC is examining the most effective mechanism to reduce or 

eliminate fees for Texas residents who are eligible for public assistance.  Once this research is complete, 

TREC will evaluate possible reductions or waivers of license application fees as part of its strategic planning 

process in 2020.   

As part of its strategic planning, TREC will continue to examine whether the education requirements for 

sales  agents  and  brokers  strike  the  appropriate  balance  between  consumer  protection  and  limited 



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 6 

 

 

regulation.  Currently, to become a broker, an applicant must complete 900 hours of education, including 

300  hours  of  qualifying  education  and  600  hours  of  “related”  education,  as well  as meet minimum 

experience  requirements.    There  is  likely  an  opportunity  to  reduce  total  education  hours  and  also 

substitute some portion with years of active experience as a license holder.  By more closely examining 

these requirements, TREC seeks to eliminate any redundancies.   The suggested adjustments to current 

education standards, however, would require a statutory change.   

As part of its strategic planning, TREC will also consider whether it is prudent to reduce fees related to the 

registration of ERWs and potentially substitute a requirement for bonding and/or certification.  TREC has 

registered ERWs since September 1, 1997.  While the statute identifies this function as a registry, TREC is 

authorized  to  adopt  rules,  fingerprint  applicants,  conduct  investigations  and  take  disciplinary  action 

regarding registrants, similar to TREC’s authority over license holders.  While TREC receives fees for each 

initial registration and renewal period, virtually no consumer complaints are filed.  This is likely because 

of the detailed processes required when federal funds are connected to negotiations of this type, and in 

major cases legal counsel often represents the parties. As such, reducing the related fees and substituting 

a requirement for bonding and/or certification may provide adequate protection for consumers.   This, 

too, would require statutory changes. 

Because Texas contains vast  rural areas, TREC has always been a  leader  in accepting quality distance 

education.   Several years ago, TREC  identified and  reviewed a decline  in  the  standards  for continuing 

education (CE) courses offered through distance education.  As a result, recommendations were proposed 

and adopted by rule to enhance the standards for design and delivery of online CE courses and courses 

offered through distance education to  improve accountability. Most recently, ESAC has recommended 

additional  changes  to  streamline  and  standardize  the  requirements  for  online  courses  and  distance 

education to be more similar to classroom courses.  TREC will consider these recommendations at a future 

Commission meeting. 

Remove Barriers for People with Criminal Records 

 Publish lists of specific criminal offenses that disqualify applicants from obtaining or maintaining 

an occupational license, or at least limiting the exclusion to only those offenses that directly relate 

to the duties and responsibilities of the occupation 

 Exempting  arrests  that  did  not  result  in  conviction  or  placement  on  deferred  adjudication 

community  supervision  for  the  purposes  of  determining  a  person’s  fitness  for  a  licensed 

occupation, consistent with last session’s Senate Bill 1217 

By rule, TREC has previously identified those offenses for which a conviction or a deferred adjudication 

deemed  a  conviction  under  Occupations  Code  §53.021  are  directly  related  to  the  duties  and 

responsibilities  of  a  real  estate  broker,  real  estate  sales  agent,  easement  or  right‐of‐way  agent, 

professional inspector, real estate inspector, or apprentice inspector.  See 22 Tex. Admin. Code §541.1(a).  

TREC has made clear that these specific offenses tend to demonstrate the person’s inability to represent 

the  interest of another with honesty, trustworthiness, and  integrity.   An arrest that did not result  in a 



 
Greg Abbott 
November 27, 2019 
Page 7 

 

 

person’s conviction or placement on deferred adjudication or community supervision is not considered 

by TREC.    

In response to the legislative changes enacted in HB 1342, TREC reviewed the specific criminal offenses it 

previously deemed to directly relate to the duties and responsibilities of its license holders. At its meeting 

on November 19, 2019, TREC proposed amendments that narrow the list of criminal offenses that will be 

considered  for  inspectors  and  easements  or  right‐of‐way  agents  to  exclude  felony  driving  while 

intoxicated and driving under  the  influence offenses and makes clear  that TREC does not consider an 

arrest that did not result in a conviction or placement on deferred adjudication or community supervision.  

The criminal history of all license holders, however, remains an important consideration, particularly since 

certain occupational licenses issued by TREC provide license holders with the ability to enter residential 

properties with or without the presence of clients or customers; the opportunity to drive such persons in 

their personal vehicle; access to a client’s financial and personally identifiable information including bank 

account and social security numbers; and allow license holders to represent clients in one of the largest 

financial  investments many consumers will make  in their  lifetime.   For these reasons, the Commission 

carefully reviews the criminal history of all applicants and license holders to the full extent authorized by 

law in Chapter 53, Occupations Code, to ensure the appropriate protection of consumers. 

As required by law, TREC also offers a pre‐license fitness determination as an opportunity for potential 

applicants to inquire about whether their criminal history would meet TREC’s qualifications for licensure.  

This determination costs $50, and provides a low‐cost opportunity for a potential applicant to inquire as 

to  the  likelihood of  licensure based on  criminal history or other prohibitive activity  (e.g., unpaid  civil 

judgments,  discipline  taken  against  another  professional  or  occupational  license,  or  instances  of 

unlicensed real estate activity).  If TREC were authorized by law to accept the fingerprints of a potential 

applicant prior to filing a license application, this pre‐license fitness determination would precisely mirror 

the process required after an application is filed, reducing duplication and saving the potential applicant 

both time and money by avoiding the cost of taking classes only to be deemed ineligible for a license. This 

would require a legislative change.  

Conclusion 

The Commission is committed to examining whether current laws, rules, and practices are implementing 

regulations in the least restrictive means consistent with adequate protection of Texas consumers.  The 

thorough review of TREC’s occupational‐licensing rules and a robust discussion among appointed policy‐

makers has been a worthy exercise that will shape the Commission’s direction for the future. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Commission Members 
 Comments & Questions 

 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   Adjournment 
 

  
 
 






























	1.Call to Order
	1(a) Roll Call
	1b Approval of Agenda
	1c Statements of Conflict of Interest
	2. Oral Comments & Public Comments
	3. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	3a September 25, 2019 
	4. Committee Reports
	4a Property Management Committee
	4b Education Committee 
	5. Old Business
	5a Potential Changes to Consumer Disclosure & Waiver of Rights forms
	5b Notarized Signature regulations
	6. New Business
	6a Fine Matrix
	6b PearsonVue contract and pass rates
	6c AK REC Property Transfer form
	6d Consideration of forming a Communications Committee
	7. Division Update
	8. Investigative Report
	8a Statistical Report
	9. Executive Administrator's Report
	9a Licensing and Eduation Report
	9b Recovery Fund Balance Report
	10. 2020 Proposed Meeting Dates 
	11. TX REC Regulation Reform
	12. Commission member comments and questions
	13. Adjournment
	ARELLO Boundaries Dec 2019 Newsletter
	PearsonVue.pdf
	PearsonVue Contract and
	Overall Pass Rates




